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Port Phillip and
Western Port region
The Port Phillip and Western Port region
is home to over 4 million people and
boasts some of Victoria’s most productive
farming lands, spectacular parks,
exciting landscapes and diverse natural
ecosystems. The activities and lifestyles of
the region’s urban and rural residents, and
the region’s thriving tourism industry, are
underpinned by the diversity and health
of its natural resources. The challenges
associated with a growing population and
changing climate mean the region’s natural
resources need to be carefully managed.
Native Flora and Fauna
The extensive range of vegetation
communities and natural ecosystems
found in the region are home to many
species of native flora and fauna. While
there has been substantial development
and alteration of the region’s landscape,
approximately 40% of the region retains
indigenous vegetation including several
areas of significant grasslands. Around
34% of this vegetation is protected in
parks or reserves and managed for
conservation while a further 20% is found
on other public land. The remaining 46%
of this indigenous vegetation is retained
on private land. There are many native
animals that have adapted to the change,
but around 340 flora species and 200
animal, bird, fish and reptile species are
considered under threat of local or total
extinction. Victoria’s faunal emblem, the
Helmeted Honeyeater, is one of these
threatened species.

Parks and Reserves
The region is home to many parks and
reserves that support rare and diverse
flora and fauna species and provide highly
valued recreation and tourism areas. There
are eight National Parks, six State Parks
and eight marine protected areas, as well
as numerous regional, metropolitan and
local parks and conservation reserves.
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39% native
vegetation

4m+ people

Water Resources
The region’s water storage and waterway
system provides most of the potable
supply for 75% of Victoria’s population
and many other economic, social and
environmental benefits. There are around
8,400 kilometres of waterways, attracting
around 100 million recreational visits
annually. More than 900 wetlands are
dotted across the region, three of which
are listed as Wetlands of International
Importance under the Ramsar Convention
on Wetlands.

The Bays and Coast
The catchments meet the sea at Port
Phillip Bay and Western Port, each
with unique ecological, economic and
community values. The bays support
commercial fishing, aquaculture, three
major ports and provide the most popular
recreational fishing areas in Victoria.
Not surprisingly, some 90 million
recreational visits are made each year to
the bays and beaches of the region’s 600
kilometre coastline.
Cultural and Natural Heritage
The region is home to many sites of
cultural significance including important
indigenous sites such as stone quarries,
coastal shell middens and hundreds of
scar trees scattered across the region,
geological formations such as the Organ
Pipes and Werribee Gorge, significant
landscapes and vegetation of local and
introduced species.
Managing the Region’s Natural
Resources
The region’s environment, as measured by
indicators such as air and water quality, is
generally good by world standards. These
factors are fundamental to Melbourne’s
reputation as one of the world’s most
livable cities. Managing the natural
resources in this region is a complex task.
Many people and organisations play a
part including numerous Government
agencies, 38 Councils, various nongovernment organisations, agricultural and
industry bodies and hundreds of volunteer
Landcare and community groups.

600km
coastline
Agriculture
Of the 1.3 million hectares in the region,
around 45% is rural farmland with
industries including horticulture, dairying,
poultry farming, beef farming, horse
management and viticulture. The region
produces the second highest agricultural
yield, in dollars per year, among Victoria’s
ten catchment management regions.

1.3m
hectares

8,400km
waterways
Port Phillip & Westernport CMA
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The role of the PPWCMA
Who we are

Who we work with

Our vision

The Port Phillip and Westernport Catchment
Management Authority (PPWCMA) is a Victorian
Government statutory authority established
under the Catchment and Land Protection Act
1994. The responsible Ministers for the period
from 1 July 2012 to 30 June 2013 were the
Hon. Ryan Smith MP, Minister for Environment
& Climate Change, and the Hon. Peter Walsh
MLA, Minister for Water.

The PPWCMA works mainly with Government
departments, councils, water authorities,
non-government environmental organisations,
community groups and other partners to protect
and enhance the natural resources within the
region. In simple terms, we draw people and
organisations together to create a shared vision
for the region’s environment and generate
collaboration with and between these partners.
The PPWCMA makes working together more
attractive and productive than working alone.

In 2030, people and organisations across
the Port Phillip & Western Port region will
be collaborating to protect and improve the
extent, quality and diversity of its environmental
assets. Amid continuous changes in land use
and climate, there will be shared leadership in
decision making, action, monitoring, reporting
and learning that ensures targets for all
environmental assets are met and contribute
to the natural ecosystems being healthy and
resilient.

The PPWCMA also works closely with the
Victorian and Australian Governments to secure
and direct funds to priority projects and secure
additional funding from the private sector to
support these projects.

Our values

At the local level, the PPWCMA helps
landholders to improve their knowledge, skills
and practices, and works with the broader
public to increase interest in the environment
and gain input from the community on important
environmental issues.

What we do
The PPWCMA is responsible for:


preparing a Regional Catchment Strategy
and coordinating and monitoring its
implementation;



Vibrant and positive - we embrace
challenges with energy and enthusiasm;



promoting cooperation in the management
of land and water resources;



Reliable – we do what we say we will do
and deliver on our promises;



advising on regional priorities and resource
allocation;



Knowledgeable and articulate - we seek to
understand the complexities of a situation
and to communicate them simply;



advising on matters relating to catchment
and land protection;



Respectful - we actively listens to others
and respects their views;



advising on the condition of land and water
resources; and



Focused - we value clarity of purpose and
focus on the things that matter most;



promoting community awareness and
understanding of the importance of land
and water resources, their sustainable use,
conservation and rehabilitation.



Balanced – we value and encourage a
healthy work-life balance; and



Supportive – we support our colleagues
and our partners.

We draw people together to create a shared vision for the region’s environment
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2012/13 Highlights
The PPWCMA’s successes and highlights during
2012/13 included:




Release of the draft Port Phillip & Western
Port RCS which introduced innovations not
seen in such strategies across Australia.
The draft strategy was produced as a
website rather than a printed document
and features an interactive map enabling
users to zoom in from region-scale to
property-scale.
The planting of Grow West’s millionth tree
by the Hon. Ryan Smith MP, Minister for
Environment & Climate Change, at the
annual Grow West Community Planting
Day attended by 200 volunteers. Through
the year, Grow West also used $268,000
for pest control and landscape restoration
on over 200 hectares and 8 kilometres of
waterways.



Delivery of $426,000 to 63 local
environmental projects through the annual
PPWCMA Community Grants program –
ranging from group support grants of $500
to on-ground projects up to $20,000.



The beginning of significant on-ground
work in the Maribyrnong Valley through
the “Meeting of the Minds to Manage the
Maribyrnong” and “A verdant Maribyrnong
Valley” projects including 80 hectares of
weed and 357 hectares of feral animal
control.



Protection of Ramsar wetland sites on the
shores of Western Port and Port Phillip
Bay involving multiple organisations that
collectively treated over 7,727 hectares for
pest animals, 468 hectares for weeds and
protected over 216 hectares by fencing.



Improvement of habitat for three rare and
endangered native species – the Helmeted
Honeyeater, Leadbeaters Possum and
Southern Brown Bandicoot - through the
PPWCMA-managed Habitat Protection
and Conservation project which enhanced
over 319 hectares of native vegetation.



Completion of the Living Links Master
Plan to promote new landscape-scale
connections in an urban environment
covering 10 council areas in Melbourne’s
south-east.



Conduct of numerous community activities
including Catchment Action Round Tables,
plant identification workshops, bus tours,
horse property management workshops,
environmental best management practice
training, farm planning sessions, chemical
users courses, planting days, information
sessions on Government funding
opportunities, Landcare support staff
workshops and creek walks, collectively
involving around 1,300 participants.

The Hon. Ryan Smith MP, Minister for Environment and Climate Change, with members of the Grow West Committee
and volunteers, with Grow West’s one millionth tree

Port Phillip & Westernport CMA
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Chair’s message
The PPWCMA is a focused, positive and
vibrant organisation and I am pleased to report
that 2012/13 has been another exciting and
rewarding year.
A highlight has been the advances made
in developing the new Regional Catchment
Strategy for our region. This Strategy has
innovations that set it apart from all others
across Australia and that our Board firmly
believes make it the prototype for strategic
environmental planning in the future.
We were delighted to host the Hon. Ryan
Smith MP, Minister for Environment and Climate
Change, for two days in late 2012 and shared
the opportunity with around 100 of our partners
from various organisations and community
groups. The Minister engaged closely with
everyone on bus tours in the Western Port and
Werribee catchments and demonstrated his

accessibility and his strong understanding of onground and local issues within his portfolio.
Four of our PPWCMA Board meetings through
the year were hosted by partner organisations.
Our thanks go to the leaders of the Environment
Protection Authority, Moonee Valley City Council,
the Phillip Island Nature Parks and Moorabool
Shire Council for making this possible and
engaging closely with us on matters of mutual
interest and importance. Our thanks also to
the Port of Melbourne Corporation and Thiess
Degrémont for the opportunity to tour and
discuss the port facilities and the Wonthaggi
desalination plant respectively.
We also benefitted from engaging at
Board meetings or other events with many
organisations including the Yarra Riverkeepers,
the National Sea Change Taskforce, the
Association of Bayside Municipalities, the

Growth Areas Authority, the Office of Living
Victoria, the Dolphin Research Institute,
Southern Rural Water and Westernport Water
on natural resource management matters of
importance for this region.
Staying in touch with what’s going on across the
region helped the PPWCMA to make important
submissions regarding Government policy and
planning processes including the Victorian
Environmental Assessment Council’s Yellingbo
investigation, the native vegetation regulations
reform process and Melbourne Water‘s
development of the regional Healthy Waterways
Strategy.
On the home front, the PPWCMA again
demonstrated excellent financial management,
governance, risk management and project
management and stayed on track throughout
2012/13 with all key business indicators. I thank
all of our Board members for their stewardship
of the organisation. The Board was always
harmonious and productive and, in partnership
with the CEO, found the right balance in
strategic and operational oversight.
I also thank the staff of the PPWCMA for a
year of hard work and high achievement. The
staff exhibited passion for the environment and
commitment to collaboration and excellence.
There was always a strong sense of purpose,
aligned to our strategic direction, which
ensured the PPWCMA operated effectively and
efficiently.
The PPWCMA has much to be proud of from its
2012/13 year. This Annual Report outlines the
achievements in more detail and I commend it
to you.

Neville Goodwin
Chair, Port Phillip & Westernport CMA
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The Board
Chair – Neville Goodwin

Arron Wood

Neville is a primary producer at Woodleigh and
a former Councillor and Mayor of the Bass
Coast Shire Council. He is President elect
of Wonthaggi Rotary Club and is serving his
second term as a Community Representative
on the Bass Coast Shire Council Major Events
Committee. He is also on the Board of Bass
Coast Regional Health and is Chair of the
Grantville Community Market. During 2012/13,
Neville was Chair of the PPWCMA’s Business &
Remuneration Committee.

Arron is the Director of Firestarter Pty Ltd,
an environmental communication and
education consultancy business. He is a
former Young Australian of the Year (National
environment category) and has received
numerous other awards for his services to the
environment. Arron has extensive experience
in major environmental and public awareness
campaigns. During 2012/13, Arron was
elected as a Councillor with the Melbourne City
Council. Through 2012/13, Arron served as
Chair of the PPWCMA’s Regional Catchment
Strategy Steering Committee.

Deputy Chair – Jacquelyn Ross
Jacquelyn holds qualifications in science
majoring in botany, landscape architecture and
a Master of Business Administration. She has
broad public and private sector experience in
strategic planning, landscape planning, urban
design and natural resource management.
During 2012/13, Jacquelyn served as Deputy
Chair of the Board (from April 2013) and as
a member of the PPWCMA’s Business &
Remuneration Committee.

Peter Akers
Peter holds qualifications in civil engineering
and local government, with a broad range
of experience and skills in strategic thinking,
leadership, collaboration and project
management. He previously held a range of
senior executive roles in emergency services
and local government. During 2012/13, Peter
also served as Deputy Chair of the PPWCMA
Board (to April 2013), as a member of the
PPWCMA’s Audit Committee (Chair from April
2013) and as a member of the Living Links
Coordination Committee.

Jane Jobe
Jane holds qualifications in Applied Science
(Environmental Science) and a Bachelor of
Business (Communication). She is co-founder
of Southern Sustainable Developments Pty
Ltd, Secretary of the Board of the Mornington
Peninsula & Western Port Biosphere Reserve
Foundation and a member of Phillip Island
Landcare. During 2012/13, Jane served
as a member of the PPWCMA’s Business &
Remuneration Committee and the Regional
Catchment Strategy Steering Committee.

Bill Jaboor
Bill holds qualifications in company directorship,
governance and has a Masters of Business
Administration. He has also participated in the
State and Local executive Program at Harvard
University. Bill is Chief Executive Officer of
Brimbank City Council. He is the Chair of the
Western Melbourne Regional Development
Australia (RDA) Committee and a Director on the
Boards of the Regional Kitchen and Community

Chef. During 2012/13, Bill served as a member
of the PPWCMA’s Business & Remuneration
Committee.

Lance Jennison
Lance has qualifications and extensive
experience across public safety, risk and
emergency management, working with
Councils to support legislative compliance
in emergency planning. Lance has been
involved in community conservation programs
for the past 30 years, is a member of the
State National Parks Advisory Council and is a
Board Director of Bacchus Marsh Community
Enterprise. During 2012/2013, Lance served
as Deputy Chair of the PPWCMA’s Grow West
Implementation Committee and as a member of
the PPWCMA’s Audit Committee.

Laura Mumaw
Laura holds qualifications in Biology (BSc)
and Fisheries (MSc). She has held a range of
senior executive and Board roles in Australia
and abroad for prominent organisations
providing conservation, recreation, tourism and
community education services. Amongst these
have been positions of CEO of Zoos Victoria
and Board member of Landcare Research (NZ).
During 2012/13, Laura served as a member of
the PPWCMA’s Audit Committee, as a member
of the Regional Catchment Strategy Steering
Committee and as a member of the Yarra4Life
Coordination Committee.
Top left to right: Lance Jennison, Peter Akers,
Neville Goodwin, Bill Jaboor, Arron Wood
Bottom left to right: Laura Mumaw, Jane Jobe,
Jacquelyn Ross, Kay Spierings

Kay Spierings
Kay is a Certified Practising
Accountant (CPA) and a Graduate
of the Australian Institute of
Company Directors. She is a
primary producer with a keen
interest in sustainable agriculture
and has extensive business
experience in strategic planning,
organisational governance,
policy formulation and business
and financial management and
administration. She is Chair
of the Victorian Certified Seed
Potato Authority (ViCSPA). During
2012/13, Kay served as Chair of
the PPWCMA’s Audit Committee
(to April 2013) and as a member
of the Business and Remuneration
Committee (from April 2013).

Port Phillip & Westernport CMA
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CEO’s message
There is much for the Staff and Board members
of the PPWCMA to be proud of from 2012/13.

Innovation in regional environmental
planning
We continued our ground-breaking approach
to develop the next Regional Catchment
Strategy (RCS) as a website. Within it, an
on-line mapping function enables Government
departments, Councils, Landcare groups,
landholders and the general public to see and
explore the environmental assets of this region
and the targets for the future. We believe this
is the first time that environmental planning
has been undertaken in this way anywhere in
Australia. A ‘Partners Draft’ of the Strategy
was released in October 2012, then a ‘Public
Draft’ was released in April 2013 and a series
of public consultation activities was undertaken.
The final Strategy was submitted to the Victorian
Government Ministers for assessment in June
2013.

On-ground projects for environmental
improvement
We are also very proud of our work to
bring strategic planning to life through onground projects. In 2012/13, the PPWCMA
coordinated numerous projects involving
various organisations, each improving the
environment and landscapes in particular
areas. The Grow West, Yarra4Life and Living
Links projects, the Ramsar Protection Program
and the new Meeting of the Minds to Manage
the Maribyrnong project together generated
millions of dollars of on-ground works and
created efficiencies by helping many agencies
and Councils work together. A highlight was
the planting of Grow West’s millionth tree at
a community planting day by the Hon. Ryan
Smith MP, Minister for Environment and Climate
Change. The PPWCMA also directed millions
of dollars to other organisations for important
environmental projects in the region.

Collaborating with the community
Working closely with the community of the
region remained a priority of the PPWCMA
through 2012/13. We conducted training
sessions, field days and educational events
that brought community groups together to
learn from one another and create efficient,
new partnerships. Over 50 landholder and
community events were conducted with almost
1,200 participants. The Regional Landcare
Awards were held in September 2012 and
recognised the outstanding contribution of
groups and volunteers. The annual PPWCMA
Community Grants also directed hundreds
of thousands of dollars to Landcare and
community groups and networks for important,
local, on-ground projects.

PPWCMA Staff
Leading the way
We have continued to monitor and report on
our office environmental footprint, maintaining
carbon neutrality to scope 1 and 2 again this
year. The organisation values the dedication
of our staff volunteers in supporting our
environmental working group which encourages
sustainable practices in both our workplace and
community.
From a governance and cultural perspective,
we were 100% compliant with the Victorian
Government’s Financial Management
Compliance Framework and have continued to
achieve excellent staff morale and satisfaction
as measured by the annual ‘People Matter’
survey.

The year ahead
Looking ahead, I expect 2013/14 to also
be exciting and rewarding. The RCS will
be launched and the Alliance of partner
organisations will be initiated. Research will be
under way on potential climate change impacts
and adaptation with a view to the information
being loaded into the RCS. In addition, we
aim to introduce mechanisms that will enable
community members to input data to the RCS
mapping. Overall, I expect the revenue of the
PPWCMA to be similar to recent years including
significant funding secured from Australian
Government initiatives. Our work will include
new 5-year projects funded through Caring for
our Country with an emphasis on strengthening
our engagement with the commercial agriculture
sector and Indigenous communities.
For the achievements of the year, I sincerely
thank and congratulate all the staff and Board
members of the PPWCMA. Our staff are vibrant,
positive, focussed, articulate and reliable. It is
a privilege to be part of this team and to have
the opportunity to apply our passion for the
environment in our daily work.

David Buntine
Chief Executive Officer
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At the end of 2012/13, the PPWCMA employed
a total of 23 staff led by Chief Executive Officer,
Mr David Buntine.

Audit
Committee

Business and
Remuneration
Committee

Community
Grants
Assessment
Panel

Regional
Catchment
Strategy
Steering
Committee

The PPWCMA staff structure comprised the
following four teams:

PPWCMA
Board

Business and Governance Team
The Business Team coordinated the governance
and business systems and processes of the
PPWCMA to ensure transparent, efficient and
compliant management of all administrative,
finance, human resource, communication and
governance obligations.

CEO
David Buntine

Environmental Projects Team
The Environmental Projects Team managed
the development and delivery of major
environmental projects including Grow West,
Living Links, Yarra4Life, the Ramsar Protection
Program and the Meeting of the Minds to
Manage the Maribyrnong Project. This team
focused on securing and distributing investment
for environmental projects from Australian and
Victorian government, Councils, corporate and
philanthropic sources as well as generating
collaboration between various organisations to
deliver on-ground outcomes.

Environmental Strategy Team
The Environmental Strategy Team managed
the development of the RCS, inputs to
environmental Strategies of other organisations
and provided IT support and services to the
PPWCMA.

Landcare and Community Outreach
Team
The Landcare and Community Outreach Team
provided strategic support to Landcare groups
to help translate regional priorities to a local
scale by engaging and influencing landholders
through forums, awards and community
seminars.

Business &
Governance
Team

Landcare &
Community
Outreach Team

Environmental
Projects
Team

Environmental
Strategy
Team

Business &
Governance
Manager
Carolyn Nicholson

Landcare &
Community
Outreach Manager
Doug Evans

Environmental
Projects
Manager
Stephen Thuan

Environmental
Strategy
Manager
Emmaline Froggatt

Communications
Coordinator
Sarah Darvall

Community
NRM
Coordinator
Emmanuelle Brunet

Environmental
Projects
Coordinator
Helena Lindorff

Environmental
Strategy
Leader
Shane Scanlon

Business
Services
Coordinator
Annie Flynn

Community
NRM
Coordinator
Grant Godden

Environmental
Projects
Coordinator
Adam Shalekoff

Environmental
Strategy
Leader
Chris Lewis

Finance
Coordinator
Tipei Gambiza

Community
NRM
Coordinator
Rosemary Reilly

Environmental
Projects
Coordinator
Mary-Kate Hockey

Environmental
Strategy
Leader
Ian Morgans

HR
Coordinator
Hayley Northcote

Community
NRM
Coordinator
Will Hogg

Environmental
Projects
Coordinator
Tim Bloomfield
Environmental
Projects
Coordinator
Robert Hall
Environmental
Projects
Coordinator
Anthony Dufty

Kacie Melfi (Maternity Leave)

Port Phillip & Westernport CMA
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Summary of performance
Supporting Landcare
Legend

ü

Achieved

Key Performance Indicators
ü

×

Partially achieved

Not achieved

Directing funding to priority projects
Key Performance Indicators

Achieved

Comments and performance

At least $2 million of Victorian Government funds and at least $3 million of Australian
Government funds secured for priority projects in this region.

ü

A total of over $6 million (over $2.3 million of Victorian
Government funds and over $3.8 million of Australian
Government funds) was secured and received in 2012/13.

Securing of funds by the PPWCMA from diverse sources including the corporate
and philanthropic sectors for delivery of projects that contribute to the directions and
implementation of the Regional Catchment Strategy.

ü

Over $700,000 was secured from other sources including
partner organisations and the private sector.

ü
ü

8% of grant funds spent on administration in 2012/13. There
were nil grants from which more than 10% was spent on
administration.

10 per cent or less of grant funds is spent on administration.
Grant applications are determined within one month of being received.

Average time taken to determine grant applications is 27 days.

Key Performance Indicators

Achieved

Receipt of positive feedback from stakeholder organisations about the performance and
role of the PPWCMA in leading and coordinating major environmental projects involving
multiple stakeholders.

ü

Positive feedback was regularly received from funders and
partner organisations.

ü

A successful Community Planting Day was undertaken.
Major project submissions were submitted to prospective
fund sources and project work was secured for the two years
ahead.

ü

The Living Links Master Plan was approved by the
Committee. An application for a $6 million project over 5
years was developed in partnership with the many partner
organisations of Living Links. and was submitted to Australian
Government funding programs.

Securing of at least $80,000 for Grow West works and coordination.
Undertake a Grow West Community Planting Day involving in the order of 150 people.
Submission of Grow West project proposals totalling in the order of $1 million to potential
investors that would enable substantial on- ground works in years ahead.
Completion of the Living Links Master Plan to the satisfaction of the Living Links
Coordination Committee, and making the plan publicly available via the internet.
Securing of at least $120,000 for Living Links works and coordination.
Submission of Living Links project proposals totalling in the order of $1 million to potential
investors that would enable substantial on- ground works in years ahead.

Comments and performance

Securing of at least $60,000 for Yarra4Life works and coordination.
Establishing contracts with landholders and deliver on-ground works that fulfil the existing
commitments to investors associated with Yarra4Life including the Habitat Protection &
Conservation project.

ü

Yarra4Life’s on-ground commitments were successfully
delivered and submission was made to potential fund sources
for major projects in future years.

Submission of Yarra4Life project proposals totalling in the order of $1 million to potential
investors that would enable projects in future years.

ü

Securing of at least $40,000 for Spirit of the Bunyip works and coordination.
Submission of Spirit of the Bunyip project proposals totalling in the order of $500,000 to
potential investors that would enable a program of on-ground works.
Delivery of on-ground works that fulfil the existing commitments to investors associated
with the Ramsar Protection Program.
Submission of project proposals totalling in the order of $2 million that would enable a
continuation of Ramsar wetland protection works in future years
Delivery of on-ground works that fulfil the existing commitments to investors associated
with the Meeting of the Minds in the Maribyrnong project.

A workshop of the Spirit of the Bunyip Committee agreed
that the project be put into hibernation until such time as an
opportunity for significant funding is identified in the future.

ü

The project successfully delivered the required on-ground
works and applications for major future funding were
developed and submitted to Australian Government funding
programs.

ü

On-ground works will continue for the next two years.

Engaging stakeholder organisations and enhancing community awareness
Key Performance Indicators
Conduct of around 100 engagement activities held with key stakeholder organisations
(Government agencies and Councils).
Conduct of at least 10 community outreach events conducted with collective
attendance in the order of 1,000 people.
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Achieved

ü
ü

Comments and performance
Hundreds of engagement activities (meetings, workshops,
presentations, field trips, etc.) were undertaken with key personnel
from various stakeholder organisations.
Numerous community outreach events were held with involvement
of around 1,300 people

Comments and performance
The new Strategy was approved by the PPWCMA Board on 18
April 2013 and published in June 2013.

Securing of funding that extends the tenure of a Regional Landcare Coordinator role
and at least eight Natural Resource Management Coordinator positions (5.4 FTE) to at
least the end of 2013/14.

ü

Delivery of the Regional Landcare Awards with attendance in the order of 200 people.

ü

The Regional Landcare Awards were conducted in September
2012 and were an outstanding success with around 250
attendees.

Provision of community grants for projects that deliver priority on-ground
improvements.

ü

The PPWCMA Community Grants program was again run
successfully and all successful projects were begun.

Funding proposals were submitted to extend the tenure of
positions but the outcomes were not finalised by the end of
2012/13.

Advising on natural resource management issues and opportunities
Key Performance Indicators

Achieved

Comments and performance

ü

Significant advice was submitted to Government regarding
planning zones reform and native vegetation regulations. Informal
advice was provided to Ministers through the year. Advice was
also regularly provided to stakeholder organisations including
written submissions to various planning and policy processes.

Development of advice by the PPWCMA and delivery to stakeholders

Maintaining a healthy organisational culture and high standards of business management and governance
Key Performance Indicators
100% compliance with all applicable Directions of the Financial Management
Compliance Framework.
100% completion of all statutory reporting requirements on time.
Regular review of the PPWCMA Risk Register.
Complete and submit an annual Board performance assessment report, according to
any guidelines issued by 31 August annually.
Participation of all Board members in development activities.
High levels of staff commitment and morale in comparison to public sector
organisations, measured via the annual ‘People Matter’ survey.
The Board Charter is reviewed (and if necessary amended) by 30 June annually.
All programs have risk management plans in place.

Revising of the Spirit of the Bunyip Business Plan to the satisfaction of the Spirit of the
Bunyip Coordination Committee.

ü

Evaluate and revise the Regional Landcare Support Strategy every five years.

Receipt of feedback from Ministers and/or other stakeholders that advice has been
timely, insightful, innovative and/or practical.

Managing environmental projects

Achieved

Nil non-compliances with risk management plan.
Each policy and procedure is reviewed at least every five years.

Achieved

Comments and performance

ü
ü
ü
ü
ü
ü
ü
ü
ü
ü

100% compliance with the framework was confirmed through the
PPWCMA internal audit process.
100% of statutory requirements were met on time throughout
2012/13.
The Risk Register was regularly included as an agenda item at
Board meetings and a significant review of the Risk Register was
undertaken in early 2013 and approved by the Board.
An annual Board performance assessment report was submitted
on 30 August 2012.
100% of Board Members participated in a range of development
activities during 2012/13.
The results of the survey demonstrated high levels of morale and
commitment by PPWCMA staff.
The Board Charter was reviewed on 25 October 2012.
100% of programs have risk management plans in place.
Nil instances of non-compliances with risk management plan.
42% of policies and procedures reviewed in 2012/13.

Coordinating implementation of the Regional Catchment Strategy
Key Performance Indicators

Achieved

Comments and performance

Submit the developed or revised Regional Catchment Strategy by the due date as
required in any guidelines, standards and related information issued.

ü

The draft RCS was finalised and submitted for assessment
in June 2013 and is anticipated to be approved in early
2013/14.

All Regional Catchment Strategy annual actions implemented.

×

The draft Regional Catchment Strategy was finalised and
submitted for assessment in June 2013 and is anticipated to
be approved in early 2013/14.

Public accessibility of the RCS as a website.

ü

The draft RCS was released as a website to Government
organisations and Councils in late 2012 and to the general
public in April 2013.

Incorporation of RCS data layers into the Geographic Information Systems of at least 10
Councils.

×

Data layers were not provided to Councils in 2012/13 but are
anticipated to be provided after the RCS is approved.

The establishment of a “RCS Alliance”; a voluntary alliance of the organisations
contributing to the achievement of the RCS’s targets, with at least 15 member
organisations by the end of 2012/13.

×

The Alliance was not formally established in 2012/13 but is
anticipated to be formed in 2013/14.

Port Phillip & Westernport CMA
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Coordinating
implementation of the RCS
The Regional Catchment Strategy (RCS)
identifies environmental assets that are
important for the health and productivity of
the region’s land, biodiversity, waterways and
bays. It outlines agreed targets for the future
condition of the environment and identifies
the government agencies, councils and other
organisations who take leadership responsibility
for those targets.
A third edition of the region’s RCS is being
compiled to update the previous edition which
was published in 2004.
During 2012/13, the PPWCMA continued
an extensive program of consultations to
develop the RCS with around 50 councils
and environmental agencies including the
Department of Environment and Primary
Industries, Victorian Catchment Management
Council, Melbourne Water, Parks Victoria,
Central Coastal Board, Growth Areas Authority,
Environment Protection Authority and
Department of Transport, Planning & Local
Infrastructure.

Over 250 environmental experts from these
organisations worked with PPWCMA staff –
individually and in cluster groups - to develop
agreed methods for assessing the current
condition of environmental assets, and to set
agreed targets for their future condition.
This information forms the major content of
the RCS and is spatially represented on the
website’s interactive map.
In September 2012, the RCS was released as a
Partners’ Draft. This first phase of consultation
aimed to ensure that the RCS content was
agreeable to the various organisations being
asked to consider leadership responsibility for
its targets.
Feedback buttons on each page of the website
enabled direct comment on all aspects of the
draft from its design and navigability to individual
information, targets and proposals.

In March 2013 the draft RCS was released
for public comment. This four-week public
consultation phase was widely publicised
through the metropolitan and local media, and
by direct mail and electronic media to over
2,000 organisations and individuals with an
interest in natural resource management and
PPWCMA activities in the region.
The PPWCMA received over 200 submissions
relating to all aspects of the draft RCS. With
consideration of these submissions, the
PPWCMA made amendments to the RCS
and in late June 2013, submitted the RCS for
the consideration of the Hon. Ryan Smith MP,
Minister for Environment and Climate Change,
and the Hon. Peter Walsh MLA, Minister for
Water.

Port Phillip & Westernport CMA

Government funds for priority projects
In 2012/13, the PPWCMA secured a total
of $6.194 million for priority projects from
the Victorian and Australian Governments
comprised of:


$2.336 million from the Victorian
Government’s ‘Victorian Investment
Framework’ and other initiatives; and



$3.858 million from the Australian
Government’s ‘Caring for our Country’ and
‘Biodiversity Fund’ programs and other
initiatives.

In addition to the government funds, a further
$655,967 was secured from private sector
sponsors, councils, philanthropic organisations
and other partners.
In 2012/13, the PPWCMA also sought future
funding by submitting investment proposals
to the Australian Government’s ‘Caring for our
Country - Sustainable Environment Grants’
and ‘Biodiversity Fund’ processes. The project
proposals were developed in collaboration
with government agencies, councils, nongovernment organisations and Landcare
networks.

Effective funding administration
The PPWCMA administered and managed
the funds from the Victorian and Australian
Governments in 2012/13 in a cost-effective
manner. Of the $6.194 million of Victorian and
Australian Government funds, 8% ($494,000)
was specifically allocated to the PPWCMA to
administer funding processes.
Progress of the KPI’s during 2012/13 is
captured in the Performance Summary table on
page 10.

Progress of the KPI’s during 2012/13 are
captured in the Performance Summary table on
page 10.

During 2012/13, the PPWCMA continued an extensive program of consultations to develop the Regional Catchment Strategy

12

Directing funding to
priority projects

Landholders learn first hand how the Habitat Protection and Conservation Program, funded by the Australian Government’s Caring for our Country
inititative, has benefitted land in the Yarra Valley

Port Phillip & Westernport CMA
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PPWCMA Project Map
Projects funded by the Victorian Government
Title of project

Project leader

Funding

Helmeted Honeyeater Recovery

Department of Environment & Primary Industries

$125,000

Threatened Species Recovery

Department of Environment & Primary Industries

$180,000

Protecting Western Port and Strategic Landscapes

Trust for Nature

$80,000

Western Port Land Stewardship

Bass Coast Landcare Network

$200,000

Enhancing Ecological Health of Western Port

Melbourne Water

$175,000

PPWCMA Community Grants

PPWCMA & community groups

$268,000

7

2

16
5

11

13

9

8

14

6
15

Linking and demonstrating soil health outcomes and
management practices on grazing properties in the
Western Port and West Gippsland regions Year 2

Bass Coast Landcare Network & Department of
Environment & Primary Industries

$180,000

Regional Landcare Coordinator

PPWCMA

$137,000

Corporate governance

PPWCMA

$989,915

4

3

1

10

12

15

17

Total

$2,336,235

Projects funded by the Australian Government
Title of project

Project leader

Ramsar Protection Program

PPWCMA

Victorian Volcanic Plains Grasslands Protection
Program

Hume, Melton, Wyndham, Moorabool & Geelong
Councils

$600,000

Habitat Protection & Conservation Program

PPWCMA

$650,000

Healthy Soils – Linking Soil Carbon & Soil Acidification
with Farm Management Practices

Cardinia Environment Coalition / Westernport
Catchment Landcare Network

$150,000

$1,000,000

Retaining Stormwater to Improve Water Quality of
Waterways and Bays

Melbourne University

$200,000

Wurundjeri Traditional Ecological Knowledge for
Biodiversity Conservation

Wurundjeri Tribe Land & Compensation Cultural
Heritage Council

$100,000

Caring for our Country Regional Administration

PPWCMA

$296,000

Brisbane Ranges National Park to Werribee Gorge
State Park Biolink

PPWCMA

$338,050

A Verdant Maribyrnong Valley

Regional Landcare Facilitator

Total

14

Funding
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PPWCMA
PPWCMA, Cardinia Environment Coalition, South
Gippsland Landcare Network and Bass Coast
Landcare Network

$358,210

$166,000

$3,858,260

1

Enhancing Ecological Health of Western
Port

9

Helmeted Honeyeater Recovery

2

Grow West

10

Protecting Western Port and Strategic
Landscapes

3

Habitat Protection & Conservation
Program

11

Victorian Volcanic Plains Grassland
Protection Program

4

Healthy Soils—Linking soil carbon and
acidification with farm management
practices

12

Western Port Land Stewardship

13

Wurundjeri Traditional Ecological
Knowledge for Biodiversity Conservation

14

5

Whitehorse Creek Biolink

6

Living Links

7

Brisbane Ranges National Park to
Werribee Gorge State Park Biolink

8

Retaining stormwater to improve
water quality of waterways and bays

17

Linking and demonstrating soil health
outcomes and management practices
on grazing properties in the Western
Port and West Gippsland regions Year
2.

Region Wide Projects
18

Regional Landcare Coordinator

Yarra4Life

19

Regional Landcare Facilitator

15

Ramsar Protection Program

20

PPWCMA Community Grants

16

Meeting of Minds to Manage the
Maribyrnong, and A Verdant
Maribyrnong Valley

21

Threatened Species Recovery
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Managing
environmental projects
The PPWCMA led or coordinated five major
environmental projects in 2012/13, namely:


Living Links;



Yarra4Life;



Grow West;



Ramsar Protection Program; and



Meeting of the Minds to Manage the
Maribyrnong.

For each of these projects, the PPWCMA took
a lead role in managing the project on behalf
of a group of stakeholder organisations, often
including government departments, councils
and local community groups.

Securing funds

Master Plan

A total of $2.634 million was received in
2012/13 for these projects from various
government and non-government sources.

For the past two years the major focus of Living
Links has been advancing the development of
a ‘Master Plan’ outlining priority opportunities
to create links across the landscape for
environmental and social benefit. Consultants
were engaged to develop the Master Plan,
stakeholder workshops were held and the
plan was drafted as an innovative, interactive
website. In 2012/13, work was undertaken
to finalise Living Links projects within the
interactive website as well as improve and
revitalise it. These works are continuing and are
due to be completed in early 2013/14.



Feedback received indicates that the role played
by the PPWCMA in initiating and managing
the projects and in fostering collaboration and
partnerships amongst the stakeholders, was
highly valued and effectively implemented.

The Living Links, Yarra4Life and Grow
West projects collectively received $1.276
million in 2012/13. This included:


Progress of the KPI’s during 2012/13 is
captured in the Performance Summary table on
page 10.









$650,000 from the Australian
Government’s Caring for our
Country for the final instalment of
a three year program for habitat
protection and conservation work in
both the Yarra4Life and Spirit of the
Bunyip areas;
$338,050 from the Australian
Government’s Clean Energy Future
Biodiversity Fund program; and
$288,131 from local councils,
private sector sponsors, agencies,
philanthropic organisations and
other sources.

The Ramsar Protection Program received
$1 million for the final instalment of a
three year program from the Australian
Government’s Caring for our Country.
The Meeting of the Minds to Manage the
Maribyrnong Project received $358,210
(of $1.461 million) from the Australian
Government’s Biodiversity Fund.

Living Links works to protect and connect
parks, open areas, coastal environments,
road reserves, wetlands and restored rivers
and creeks across Melbourne’s south-eastern
suburbs and to make this area a world-class,
urban ecosystem. It is an ongoing, collaborative
project hosted by the PPWCMA, bringing
together the work of ten local councils,
Melbourne Water, South East Water, Parks
Victoria and many other organisations.

Coordination Committee
The PPWCMA administered Living Links
on behalf of its stakeholder organisations
and supported a committee to oversee
and manage the program. Members of the
Living Links Coordination Committee in
2012/13 were:
David Buntine (Chair) – PPWCMA
Peter Akers – PPWCMA Board
Tony Walker – Bushwalking Victoria
Jason der Hollander – Bicycle Victoria

Funding Sought
The PPWCMA on behalf of Living Links applied
for over $6 million in funding to implement
Living Links projects. To date $50,000
has been obtained from the Environment
Protection Authority’s Inspiring Environmental
Solutions program. This is for a Living Links
project located at River Gum Creek Reserve in
Hampton.

Below (left to right): Cormac McCarthy (City of
Maroondah), Mary-Kate Hockey (PPWCMA), Vivien
Holyoake (First Friends of Dandenong Creek) and
Clare Warren (Frankston City Council), checking
the draft Living Links Master Plan.

Simon Finlay – City of Bayside
Brian Davey – City of Casey
Maree Keenan – City of Greater
Dandenong
Lee James – City of Kingston
Nadine Gaskell – City of Knox
Amy Gillett – Landcare Australia Limited
Cormac McCarthy – City of Maroondah
Robyn Mitchell and Sandra Smith – City
of Monash
Steve McGrath – City of Whitehorse

Project management and delivery
Each project focused on the development
of biolinks and/or improving the quality and
resilience of important environmental assets
such as native vegetation, wetlands and native
animal species.
Project works included the control of invasive
plants and animals, revegetating degraded land
to prevent erosion, and protecting remnant
native vegetation from damage by stock or
other threatening processes.
A summary of the activities undertaken within
each project follows and demonstrates that
each project was managed effectively and met
the requirements of the investors.

Next steps
Banding of Hooded Plovers at Phillip Island as part of the Ramsar Protection Program.
Photo courtesy of Phillip Island Nature Parks
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In 2013/14 and beyond, the PPWCMA aims
to continue to deliver important on-ground
activities through these projects to create great
environmental outcomes.

Michael Coleman – Conservation
Volunteers Australia
Vivien Holyoake – First Friends of
Dandenong Creek
Hannah Nicholas – Frankston City Council
Amy Stephenson – Gould League
Heather Graham – Melbourne Water
Jon Theobald – South East Water
David Harper – Yarra Ranges Council
Peter Kemp – Parks Victoria (Replaced
Peter Rennick and Allan Kidd during the
year)
Kirstyn Lee – Department of Environment
and Primary Industry

Port Phillip & Westernport CMA
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Single Colour Spot Version
This is the preferred representation of the
Grow West Logo for one or two colour
applications ie brochures.
Filename:
Grow West Logo Spot/PMS 378 C.eps

The strategic direction and management of
Yarra4Life was reviewed and a Yarra4Life
Business Plan was released in April. Funding
for Yarra4Life in 2012/13 was received from the
Yarra Ranges Council, Melbourne Water and
corporate partners.
Yarra4Life works to protect, improve and
increase the quality and quantity of habitat
for biodiversity in the Yarra Valley by creating
connections. Its four objectives are connections
between partners, connections for wildlife,
connections for people along the Yarra and
connecting people with the Yarra environment.
Strategies to protect and improve habitat for
Victorian rare or threatened listed species
provide a framework for the Yarra4Life Program.
A key aim of Yarra4Life is to increase biolinks
from the home of the Environment Protection
and Biodiversity Conservation Act (EPBC) listed
Helmeted Honeyeater and Leadbeaters Possum
in the Yellingbo Nature Conservation Reserve,
to surrounding Yarra Valley parkland, so that
wildlife populations can be maintained and
extended.
Yarra4Life has been operating for seven years
with the cooperation of organisations including
Friends of the Helmeted Honeyeater, Friends
of the Leadbeaters Possum, local Landcare
networks and groups, Yarra Ranges & Cardinia
Councils, Melbourne Water, Department of
Environment and Primary Industries, Wurundjeri
Council, Victorian National Parks Association,
Zoos Victoria, Trust for Nature and Parks
Victoria.

The remainder of the HPAC funding was used in
the Westernport Catchment to deliver:


Training for 92 landowners in pest plant
management;



Training for over 50 people in Basic and
Advanced Plant Identification;



Fencing to protect 80 hectares of remnant
habitat;



123 hectares of weed control;



50 hectares of revegetation; and



Two field trips in which 28 community and
project stakeholders visited properties
supported by the Project.

Achievements in 2012/13
The progress of Yarra4Life was significantly
advanced by the Habitat Protection and
Conservation Project (HPAC), funded by the
Australian Government’s Caring for our Country
(2010- 2013). Some of the $650,000 allocated
to HPAC was used in the Yarra4Life area to
deliver:


Training for 45 landowners in pest plant
management;



Training for 15 Field Naturalists Club
of Victoria volunteers in safe ladder
use (working at heights), to service
Leadbeaters Possum nest boxes;



28 hectares of fencing to protect remnant
habitat;



3 covenants protecting a further 28
hectares of remnant habitat in perpetuity;



163 hectares of weed control;



8 hectares of revegetation;



2 interpretive signs providing information
about habitat for Leadbeaters Possums
and Helmeted Honeyeaters, designed and
installed at Yellingbo Nursery; and



Support for the Wurundjeri Council to
train 4 people in habitat protection and
conservation and manage a 35 hectare
remnant habitat site near Healesville.

In 2012/13, Yarra4Life and the National
Australia Bank also supported 46 people to
establish 3,400 plants in the Yellingbo Nature
Conservation Reserve during three corporate
planting days.

Coordination Committee
The PPWCMA coordinated Yarra4Life
and supported a committee to manage
the program. Members of the Yarra4Life
Coordination Committee in 2012/13 were:
David Buntine (Chair) – PPWCMA
Laura Mumaw – PPWCMA Board
Greg Bain – Melbourne Water
David Harper – Yarra Ranges Council
Troy Hughes – Yarra Valley and
Dandenongs Marketing
Daniel Hudson – Parks Victoria (replaced
Andrew Markwick during the year)
Irene Pearey – Yarra Valley and
Dandenong Ranges Landcare Network
Alan Clayton – Friends of the Helmeted
Honeyeater (replaced David Howell during
the year)
Ben Cullen – Trust for Nature

The Grow West Project aims to rehabilitate
land in the Rowsley Valley and Pentland Hills
areas near Bacchus Marsh. Land rehabilitation
works such as revegetation, protection and
enhancement of remnant vegetation and
establishment of farm forestry are implemented
‘hand in hand’ with comprehensive pest plant
and animal control programs. In ten years, a
total of over 1,000 hectares of revegetation has
been delivered.

Funding
During 2012/13, the PPWCMA secured
$411,940 to coordinate and undertake projects
in the Grow West area, including:


$10,000 from Ballarat City Council &
Moorabool Shire Council for the Land Fit
for Heroes project;



$50,000 from partner organisations
including the Moorabool Shire Councils,
Melbourne Water and Southern Rural
Water;





Alan Haywood – Macclesfield Landcare
Group
Fiona McConachie – Wurundjeri Council
Russell Costello – Victorian National Parks
Association
Lindsay Hyde - Department of
Environment and Primary Industries (DEPI)
Sue Bendal – Friends of Leadbeaters
Possum
Habitat Protection and Conservation Project funding recipients,
identifying weeds on their property

Bruce Quin - DEPI



$5,000 from Landcare Australia Limited for
the annual Grow West Community Planting
Day;
$338,050 from the Australian
Government’s Biodiversity Fund for
the Brisbane Ranges National Park to
Werribee Gorge State Park Biolink; and
$8,890 from landholders and other
sources.

Achievements in 2012/13
During 2012/13, the Grow West Project
supported site preparation works, revegetation,
weed treatment and rabbit control activities.
These included:

multi-stakeholder project funded by the
 The 7th annual Grow West Community
Department of Environment and Primary
Planting Day on Sunday 15 July 2012 at
Industries (formally DSE) – Vision for
David Muir’s Property along the Myrniong
Werribee
and in Version
partnership with
Creek. The day involved 200 volunteers
MonoPlains
Positive
Rowsley Landcare Group, PPWCMA –
planting 6,000 indigenous seedlings. The
ThisWest
is the
preferred
representation
of event
the featured the Hon. Ryan Smith MP,
Grow
Project
and Melbourne
Water
GrowFrontage
West Logo
forallsingle
Stream
Program,
of whomcolour (black)
Minister for Environment and Climate
are
contributing funds,
in-kind supportAds.
Change planting Grow West’s one millionth
applications
ie Newspaper
and coordination towards the project.
tree;
Filename:
West
Logo mono.eps
The
project will Grow
implement
58 hectares
of
 Sponsorship of the Grow West Art Prize in
revegetation, 70 hectares of protection and
the Bacchus Marsh Rotary Art Show; and
enhancement of remnant vegetation, and
6km of waterways fenced and revegetated.
 A field day demonstrating successes in
rabbit management on replanted and
2. Biodiversity Fund: The Grow West Project
naturally regenerated land, attended by
was successful in receiving funding from
over 70 people.
the Clean Energy Biodiversity Fund in
May 2012 for two years. The project
Mono Reversed Version
will establish a 12km biolink between
the
Werribee
Gorge
and used
the
This
version
isState
onlyPark
to be
on solid
Implementation Committee
Brisbane
Ranges
National
Park, Spot
296 Colour Version
colours
when
a Single
or
The PPWCMA administered Grow West
hectares of revegetation and 52 hectares of
Mono Positive Version cannot be used.
on behalf of its stakeholder organisations
remnant enhancement and protection.
and supported a committee to oversee
Filename: Grow West Logo reversed.eps
3. VicRoads: A joint partnership project
and manage the project. Members of the
between VicRoads and the Grow West
Grow West Implementation Committee in
Project has achieved extensive woody
2012/13 were:
weed removal and warren destruction in
over 110 hectares along the new Western
John Cutler (Chair) – Community
Freeway between Melton and Bacchus
Member
All logo files are available from the Grow
Marsh.

West Coordinator, see 5. Contacts.

4. Ingliston Stage 1: An Integrated Rabbit
Management Field Day was held attracting
60 Natural Resource Management staff and
landholders. This stage is now complete.
5. Ingliston Stage 2: This site has been
recognised as a nationally important site
for rabbit management and has been
included in the validation trial for the Rapid
Rabbit Assessment Guide. It is also the
primary Victorian research site testing the
relationship of dung counts to spotlight and
warren monitoring data in the assessment
of rabbit populations. Site preparation
has been completed for direct seeding to
occur later in 2013. This will link the two
major tributaries and add significantly to the
current Werribee River biolink in Ingliston
Park.

Marketing Activities
A range of marketing activities was undertaken
to build support for Grow West in the local
community and enable the delivery of onground works. Events and activities held in
2012/13 included:

David Buntine – PPWCMA, CEO
Lance Jennison – PPWCMA Board
David Fisken – Central Victorian Farm
Plantations Committee (resigned December
2011)
Deven McPhan – Department of Primary
Industries
Byron Guthrie – Community Member
Russell Hendry – Community Member/
Moorabool Shire Councillor
Justin Horne – Moorabool Shire Council
(in place of Gavin Alford during the year)
Stefanie Wabnik – Melbourne Water
Graham Simpson – Community Member
Rob Morris – Southern Rural Water
Alan Morton – Community Member

1. Whitehorse Creek Biolink Project: A
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Ramsar Protection Program
In 2012/13, The PPWCMA completed the
final year of a three year, $3 million Ramsar
Protection Program funded by the Australian
Government’s Caring for our Country. The
Program includes Western Port and the western
shoreline of Port Phillip Bay, and is part of
the Australian government’s commitment to
the International Ramsar Convention, which
strives for the conservation and wise use of all
wetlands.

French Island Landcare Group was engaged
to conduct a range of activities to support the
community to understand and protect Ramsar
values. Activities included information nights,
trivia nights, bird watching field days, a boat
trip around French Island with environmental
experts on board, and a series of incursions
and excursions with the local primary school. A
communication plan was drawn up for French
Island Landcare Group and assistance provided
for design and print of promotional collateral.

The PPWCMA has delivered an integrated pest
plant and animal control program through the
Ramsar Protection Program in cooperation with
project partners Parks Victoria, Western Port
Biosphere Reserve, the Phillip Island Nature
Park, the Department of Defence, Mornington
Peninsula Shire, the City of Casey and the
Department of Environment and Primary
Industries.

Highlights of the Community Engagement
Program for 2012/13 were:

During 2012/13, the Program:





A Ramsar information night hosted by
French Island Landcare Group and
attended by 25 residents;



Engagement of eight landholders from the
Yaringa area in a program of coordinated
rabbit and weed control;

Removed foxes, feral cats and rabbits from
7727 hectares of wetlands;



Treated 468 hectares for weeds;



Fenced 216 hectares of priority wetland
from stock or pest animals; and







Recorded increases in key native species
in priority areas.

Achievements in 2012/13
Community engagement activities designed to
create stronger awareness and understanding
of the environmental values of wetlands were
delivered through three groups, the Cannons
Creek Residents Association and Coast Action
Body, Friends of South Sea Foreshore Reserve
and French Island Landcare Group, with a
particular focus on the latter.



Installation of locally relevant signage
at priority Ramsar sites across Western
Port through liaison with three volunteer
Foreshore Committees of Management;
Professionally designed and printed
promotional collateral aimed at volunteer
recruitment, arising from communication
plans created for Friends of South Sea
Foreshore Reserve, and Cannons Creek
Residents Association and Coast Action
Body; and
A two day bus tour for the Hon. Ryan
Smith MP, Minister for Environment and
Climate Change, and representatives from
partner organisations including councils,
Department of Environment and Primary
Industries, Parks Victoria, Southern Rural
Water and community groups. The tour
focused on environmental priorities and
challenges in the PPWCMA region and
provided a showcase for works undertaken
through the Ramsar Program.

Engaging stakeholder
organisations & enhancing
community awareness

A Meeting of Minds to Manage the
Maribyrnong
During 2012/13, the PPWCMA established the
project framework for this multi-stakeholder
project, which manages the threats to
biodiversity and waterway values along the
Maribyrnong River and its tributaries; the Deep
and Jacksons Creeks. Key work included the
agreement of project governance controls; a
contract for efficiently managing cultural heritage
assessment between the traditional owners, the
Wurundjeri, and the PPWCMA; the employment
of a dedicated project coordinator; and the
commencement of works at a number of sites,
most notably in Deep Creek between the
confluence of Deep and Jacksons Creeks and
the township of Bulla.

Community Outreach Events
Development and refinement of the new RCS
and the associated RCS Alliance, was the focus
of 55 engagement activities that targeted a
total of 49 different stakeholder organisations
including 36 local governments, and 8
government departments.
In addition, a suite of community outreach
events conducted by the PPWCMA was
widespread and diverse in terms of scale,
audience and location. 46 different events were
delivered attracting 1273 participants across the
region. These included:

During 2012/13, the program:


recruited 14 landholders with over 635
hectares of land into the program;



Landcare Awards;



bus tours;



treated 80 hectares for dense woody
weeds infestations; and



workshops on horse property
management and property planning;



managed rabbit control programs across
357 hectares.



community planting days;



training in farm chemical use and
environmental best management practice;



workshops for collaboration; and



coordinating meetings for major projects.

Works under the project for 2012/13 were not
as extensive as originally conceived owing to
delays in the establishment of Cultural Heritage
Management Plans by our project partner,
required for effective rabbit control works along
the waterway. Whilst resolved along Deep
Creek, resolution is still pending along the
Maribyrnong downstream of the confluence of
Deep and Jacksons Creeks. The project is now
anticipating delivery in 2015/16; the extension
approved by our key Vision for Werribee Plains
investor.

Progress of the KPI’s during 2012/13 is
captured in the Performance Summary Table on
page 10.

46 different community outreach events were held throughout the year, attracting 1273 participants

The project continues to work collaboratively
with the project partners – the Maribyrnong
Minds – and community groups. Project
delivery is anticipated to ramp up over the
coming 12 months.

Workshops were held to develop connections and share understandings
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Supporting Landcare
Community Grants awarded
Landcare Support
During 2012/13, the PPWCMA continued
to provide leadership and strategic capacity
building support to the region’s Landcare
movement, and finalised and published the
PPWCMA Landcare Support Plan that sets
the directions for the PPWCMA’s support of
Landcare for the next five years.
The primary form of support provided by the
PPWCMA was a regional team of positions
that delivered activities in support of Landcare
groups and networks. The team of Community
Natural Resource Management (NRM)
Coordinators was funded with contributions
from the Australian Government’s Department
of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries (Regional
Landcare Facilitator Initiative), Melbourne Water
and the Victorian Government Department of
Environment and Primary Industries (Vision for
Werribee Plains Initiative). The team was led
by the PPWCMA’s Landcare and Community
Outreach Manager and comprised:


a Yarra Community NRM Coordinator
employed by the PPWCMA;



a Mornington Peninsula Community NRM
Coordinator employed by the PPWCMA;



a Northern Community NRM Coordinator
employed by the PPWCMA;



a Werribee Community NRM Coordinator
employed by the PPWCMA;



a Central Western Port Community NRM
Coordinator employed by the Cardinia
Environment Coalition;





a Bass Coast Community NRM
Coordinator employed by the Bass Coast
Landcare Network; and
a South Gippsland Community NRM
Coordinator employed by the South
Gippsland Landcare Network.

Support in the form of two forums to meet each
other and develop peer learning skills, along
with training in the delivery of the Environmental
Best Management Practice program, was also
provided for locally hosted Landcare Facilitators,
including the 10 part-time positions established
by the Department of Environment and Primary
Industries (formally DSE) across the region.
A highlight of the year was the biennial Port
Phillip and Western Port Landcare Awards
Presentation and Celebration function held at
the Melbourne Zoo. The event was attended by
253 people; 88% were community volunteers
representing 19 Landcare Groups, 4 Landcare
Networks, 32 Friends or other community
environment groups, and 3 schools. Master of

Group

Project Title

Funding

Arthurs Creek District Landcare Group

Roadside Control and Eradication of Nassella Species

$12,460

Blackwood Barrys Reef Landcare Group

Strategic Management of 'Escapee' Weeds in Wombat State Forest

$6,600

The team also delivered the third round of
Catchment Action Round Tables (CARTs) that
bring together Landcare Group representatives
and local agency representatives at a catchment
scale. This round of CARTs not only continued
to develop the connections and shared
understandings that underpin collaboration
for natural resource management, but also
presented the public draft version of the Port
Phillip and Western Port Regional Catchment
Strategy (RCS) to gather feedback and reveal
the alignment of local action and emerging
regional priorities.

Burke Road Billabong Committee of
Management Inc.

A Secure Store for Volunteer Tools and Equipment

$1,800*

Cardinia Environment Coalition Inc.

BNCR - Invasive Plant Control Project

$14,840

Christmas Hills Landcare Group

Stage 3 Weed Control improving the Quality of the Christmas Hills Habitat Corridor

$19,988

Collingwood Children’s Farm

North Riverbank Revitalised

$6,401*

Community Weeds Alliance of the Dandenongs

Private Land Incentive - Dandenong Ranges

$19,200

Frankston Beach Association

Beach Revegetation

$13,780

Friends of Braeside Park

West Gippsland Plains Redgum Grassy Woodlands Restoration Project - Braeside
Park

$9,800

Friends of Merri Creek

Friends of Merri Creek Restore Dianellas in the Shrubland

$20,000*

Progress of the KPI’s during 2012/13 is
captured in the Performance Summary Table on
page 10.

Friends of the Maribyrnong Valley Inc.

Stage 2 Serrated Tussock and Chilean Needle Grass Control Project

$6,680*

Friends of Warringine Park

Warringine Wetland Biolink

$11,116

Friends of Westgate Park Inc.

Revegetation at Westgate Park Engaging Community Volunteers

$5,000

FTLA - Northern Yarra Landcare Network

Farm Chemical Training for Northern Yarra Blackberry Action Group Members

$9,200

Habitat Restoration Fund

Maintain Woody Weeds in Greens Bush National Park

$15,500

Habitat Restoration Fund

Continued Restoration of Waterholes Creek for Endangered Flora and Fauna

$18,000

Johns Hill Landcare Group Inc.

Boundary Creek Biolink Project 2012

$10,200

Merri Creek Management Committee

Tracks Through Gorse Regenerate Rare Flora at Kalkallo Stony Knoll Shrubland

$9,821

Merri Creek Management Committee

Edgars Creek - Creek Connections

$20,000*

Merriang District Landcare Group

Expansion and Implementation of the Merriang District Nassella Management Plan

$20,000

Monbulk Landcare Group

Rehabilitation of Lyrebird Haunt

$10,260

Parwan Landcare

Parwan Gorge Biolink

$15,925*

Pentland Hills Landcare Group

Start the Stony Hut Creek Biolink

$20,000*

Phillip Island Landcare Group Inc.

Building Skills to Conserve and Increase Biodiversity in Island Revegetation

$20,000

Port Phillip EcoCentre Inc.

Gio's Nest-Box Forum

$8,820

Rowsley Landcare Group Inc.

Shooing Serrated Tussock from the Rowsley Valley

$20,000

Stanley Park Committee of Management

Stanley Park Habitat Protection & Restoration Stage 6

$16,692

The Whitecliffs to Camerons Bight Foreshore
Committee of Management

Protection and Enhancement of Coastal Moonah Woodland-Whitecliffs

$9,990

Victorian National Parks Association Inc.

Marine Community Engagement in the Port Phillip and Western Port Catchments

$9,690*

Wallan Environment Group

Weed Control and Revegetation Project at Wallan Primary School to enhance
Remnants

$6,100

Westernport Catchment Landcare Network Central Region

Creating, Connecting and Protecting Vital Naturelinks in Western Port

$20,000

34 Groups

Support grants of $1,000 or less

$18,200

Ceremonies, Sean (The Birdman) Dooley, was
a favourite with the crowd, announcing the
winners of the 6 award categories.

Community Grants
The PPWCMA delivered over $426,000 to
community groups through Port Phillip and
Western Port Community Grants and Repair the
River, Better the Bay Grants. Thirty four groups
received support grants of $500 to $1,000, and
31 projects were funded to undertake larger, onground works and capacity building activities.
Project grants awarded are summarised in the
table overleaf.

Total

The Indigenous culture of the region was highlighted at the Landcare Awards
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$426,063

* Project supported by Repair the River, Better the Bay Grants through funding from the Cleaner Yarra River and Port Phillip Bay – A plan of action.
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Advising on natural
resource management
issues and opportunities

Catchment condition
The condition and management
of land and water resources
in the Port Phillip and Western
Port region
Introduction

Through the year, the PPWCMA made
submissions to numerous planning and/or
investigations, including:






A submission to the Victorian
Environmental Assessment Council’s Draft
Proposals Paper regarding the future of the
Yellingbo Nature Conservation Reserve;
A submission to the Department of
Environment and Primary Industries
(formally DSE) regarding the public
consultation paper “Future directions
for native vegetation in Victoria; Review
of Victoria’s native vegetation permitted
clearing regulations”;
A submission to the Department of
Environment and Primary Industries
regarding the Public Draft of the Victorian
Landcare Program Strategic Plan;



Advice to Regional Development Victoria
(Gippsland) regarding the Gippsland
Integrated Land Use Plan; and



A submission to the Minister for Planning
on proposed reforms for Victoria’s planning
zones.

Port Phillip & Westernport CMA

Membership of the Yarra & Bay Action
Plan Task Force and Yarra & Bay Working
Group, formed by the Department of
Environment and Primary Industries;



Membership of the Communities for
Nature Regional Technical Assessment
Panel, formed by the Department of
Environment and Primary Industries which
provided the assessment, ranking and
recommended funding for the first round of
the program; and

During 2012/13, PPWCMA personnel were
also involved in various committees, working
groups and forums that provided advice to
Ministers, Departments and other stakeholder
organisations. Highlights included:



Membership of the PPWCMA CEO on
the Waterways Advisory Committee of
Melbourne Water, which reviewed and
provided advice on the directions and
operations of the Waterways Division of
Melbourne Water;

An endangered resident of the Port Phillip and Western Port region - the Orange-Bellied Parrot
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This report provides a snapshot of the overall
environmental condition of the Port Phillip and
Western Port region – the current state of its
biodiversity, marine and coastal areas, rivers and
land health.
The report fulfils the Port Phillip and Westernport
Catchment Management Authority’s (PPWCMA)
responsibility under the Catchment and Land
Protection Act 1994 to submit to the Hon.
Ryan Smith MP, Minister for Environment &

Climate Change, the Hon. Peter Walsh MLA,
Minister for Water, and the Victorian Catchment
Management Council: –

maintain a collective focus on environmental
monitoring and reporting efforts by government
and community organisations.

‘A report on the condition and management of
land and water resources in its region and the
carrying out of its functions’.

The target-based format of this region’s new
Regional Catchment Strategy (RCS) will enable
more cohesive and consistent catchment
condition reporting in future years. In 2013/14,
the RCS will reassess environmental condition
and set new targets to report against for each
asset.

The annual collation and publication of
catchment condition information helps ensure
the most up-to-date assessment of catchment
condition can be aligned with the programs,
investments and initiatives of the PPWCMA and
other natural resource managers in the region.
The Catchment Condition Report also provides
a reference for Governments, Councils and
other stakeholders to help monitor the overall
impacts of their many activities on the region’s
environmental health from year to year. It helps

Key highlights and challenges for
management
The 2012/13 year was notable for the extensive
stakeholder and community engagement
undertaken by the PPWCMA to develop the new
RCS.

Membership of the ReefWatch Steering
Committee which advised on priorities and
opportunities for ReefWatch in Victoria.

Progress of the KPI’s during 2012/13 is
captured in the Performance Summary Table on
page 10.

Continuing land-use change has impacts on the extent and health of environmental assets

Port Phillip & Westernport CMA
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The perennial challenge in the region is the
large number of land managers and planning
authorities which each have a stake in the
management of our natural resources.
To respond to this, PPWCMA has focussed
on setting targets and identifying accountable
leadership in the new RCS, which will enhance
collaborative environmental planning in this
region.
The management challenge has been to
draw the fifty-plus government environmental
agencies and Councils in the region together
with a common purpose to monitor and report
environmental change in a measurable way.
The overall aim of this approach is to develop a
RCS that can serve as a current and updateable
statement of the condition of the natural assets
that are the building blocks for ecological heath
and resilience.
Other challenges for management of land and
water resources in the region in 2012/13 have
been:




Continuing rapid population growth and
associated large scale land use change
on the metropolitan fringe which invariably
requires compromises in social and
economic values of the community and the
environmental values; and
Climate change impacts which continue
to present new threats and uncertainties
for natural resource management and
planning.

2012/13 highlights: Biodiversity protection and enhancement
Partners involved

Program

Outcomes

PPWCMA, Department of Environment and Primary
Industries

Threatened Species
Recovery

Protection of multiple threatened fauna species; including the
Helmeted Honeyeater and Southern Brown Bandicoot in high
priority locations to reduce threat of extinction.

PPWCMA, Trust for Nature

Protecting the Western
Port Flagship and
Landscape Resilience

Secured 110 hectares (ha) of high quality remnant vegetation
in the Western Port and Yarra catchment to protect habitat and
reduce threats: erosion, soil degradation, and pest animals.

PPWCMA, Australian Government, Parks Victoria,
Western Port Biosphere Reserve, Phillip Island Native
Parks, Department of Defence, Mornington Peninsula
Shire, City of Casey, Department of Environment and
Primary Industries

Ramsar Protection
Program

Large scale cross-tenure pest animal control (7,727 ha), weed
control (468 ha), Wetland fencing for stock and pest animal
exclusion (216 ha), recorded increase in native species priority
areas.

PPWCMA, Australian Government, Parks Victoria,
Department of Environment and Primary Industries,
Melbourne Water, South East Water, Zoos Victoria, Yarra
Ranges Shire, Cardinia Shire,

Habitat Protection and
Conservation

Improvement of 390 ha of remnant vegetation for threatened
fauna including the Helmeted Honeyeater, Leadbeaters Possum
and Southern Brown Bandicoot.

PPWCMA, Cities of Hume, Melton, Wyndham, Geelong
and Shire of Moorabool

Victorian Volcanic Plains
Grassland Protection

Enhancement of 2,400 ha of natural temperate grasslands to
support endangered species including the Spiny Rice Flower,
Striped Legless Lizard and Golden Sun Moth.

Refer to page 15 for a map of the project locations.

The condition of native vegetation in this
region
The extent and quality of native vegetation
and habitat is an important component of
biodiversity. Approximately 40% of the region’s
original vegetation remains and, of that, one
third is found in parks and conservation
reserves.
Forty one percent of the region’s vegetation
is classified as ‘endangered’, ‘vulnerable’,
‘depleted’, or ‘rare’. As most of this vegetation
is found on private land, landholders who are
willing and able to protect biodiversity are
vital in helping us to achieve regional goals for
biodiversity.

It should be noted that the data on the extent
and quality of native vegetation in the region is
from 2004. An updated data set is expected
from Department of Environment and Primary
Industries in late 2013.

The condition of native animals in the
region
‘Condition ratings’ for native animals in this
region were determined in 2008 through
an analysis of likely native animal species
persistence using sighting records. This
research was commissioned by PPWCMA and
undertaken by the Australian Research Centre
for Urban Ecology.

The analysis indicated that most amphibian
and birds species were persisting, whereas
reptile and mammal species have a less secure
outlook.
This 2008 analysis was undertaken prior to the
Black Saturday bushfires and subsequent wet
seasons. Damage to native animal populations
and their habitats during the bushfires, and
increased food sources in subsequent higher
rainfall years are assumed to have impacted
the condition of native species in the region,
however, data to validate these assumptions
has not yet been analysed.

Improvement of remnant revegetation for threatened species
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2012/13 highlights: Marine and Coastal areas protection and enhancement

2012/13 highlights: Rivers and Wetlands protection and enhancement

Partners involved

Program

Outcomes

PPWCMA, Department of Environment and Primary Industries,
Environment Protection Authority, Parks Victoria, Central
Coastal Board, City of Casey, Shires of Mornington Peninsula,
Bass Coast and Cardinia.

Enhancing the ecological health of
Western Port

Living Links

PPWCMA, Melbourne Water, Parks Victoria, 11 metropolitan
councils in the Melbourne’s south-east.

Partners involved

Program

Outcomes

0.5 ha mangrove mangrove restoration,
planting 10,000 seedlings. 0.5 ha invasive
plant control to protect important saltmarsh
habitat.

PPWCMA, Melbourne Water, councils and
individual landholders

Reducing Stormwater
Flows in Urban
Catchments (Little
Stringybark Creek)

Increased retention of stormwater in urban catchments and improved
water quality in waterways and bays. Prevented 9 megalitres of excess
stormwater flows and 47 kg of nitrogen per year from entering the urban
waterway system.

Improved water quality and catchment
health in the Dandenong Catchment (flows
to Port Phillip Bay).

PPWCMA, Melbourne Water, Melbourne
Airport, Brimbank, Hume, Moonee Valley
Councils, Parks Victoria, Wurundjeri Council,
City West Water

Meeting of Minds to
Manage the Maribyrong
Valley

14 landholders recruited, 80ha treated for woody weeds and 357ha of
rabbit control.

PPWCMA, Parks Victoria, Department of
Defence, Councils.

Ramsar Protection
Program

Protected the ecological character of Port Phillip Bay (western shoreline),
Bellarine Peninsula and Western Port Ramsar Wetlands.

Refer to page 15 for a map of the project locations.

The condition of marine and coastal
areas in this region

The concentration of heavy metals is no
longer measured (eg. arsenic, chromium, zinc,
cadmium), reducing the monitoring parameters
to three.

For the 2012-13 year, only six months of
monitoring data is available, from July 2012 to
January 2013.

Seagrass monitoring in Port Phillip Bay found
a slight increase in overall cover between 2008
and 2011.

Port Phillip Bay
The conclusion of the Port Phillip Channel
Deepening Project has also seen reduced
monitoring in Port Phillip Bay.

Western Port

The three parameters currently measured are
turbidity (secchi disc depth), dissolved oxygen
(%) and chlorophyll A. The number of monitoring
records in 2012/13 is 184 compared with about
600 in previous years. The results are shown in
the table below.

Unlike Port Phillip Bay, Western Port monitoring
has continued to measure heavy metals (eg.
arsenic, chromium, zinc, cadmium), so the
consistent list of variables enables comparison
of results with those from previous years. The
results are shown in the table below.

In Western Port, current seagrass cover
is similar to that observed in 1959, 1961,
1971 and 1973. A 2011 report produced by
Melbourne Water, ‘Understanding the Western
Port Environment’, reviewed available literature
and data on seagrass cover in Western Port and
supported an assessment of poor but stable.
Despite the gaps in the available data, we can
deduce that water quality for both bays is likely
to be in a relatively good and stable condition.
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Total no. of
measurements

Measurements attaining SEPP
objectives

PPWCMA assessment of condition
and trend

No.

%

Condition

Trend

Port Phillip Bay

184

158

86%

Good

Stable

Western Port

210

205

98%

Very good

Stable

Port Phillip & Westernport CMA

Water quality
Water quality monitoring for waterways is
the most complete environmental monitoring
conducted in the region. Data is obtained
from the Waterways Water Quality Monitoring

Network maintained by Melbourne Water. The
table below reports the PPWCMA’s assessment
of water quality and was determined by
analysis of the attainment of State Environment
Protection Policy (SEPP) objectives. Overall,

No. of
monitoring
sites

Total no. of
measurements

Mornington Peninsula

10

Moorabool, Melton,
Wyndham & Greater
Geelong

Area

Water quality in Port Phillip Bay and Western Port

Area

Refer to page 15 for a map of the project locations.

Measurements
attaining SEPP
objectives

results indicate a stable or improving trend for
water quality in rivers and streams across the
region.

PPWCMA assessment of condition
and trend

No.

%

Condition

Trend

179

66

37

Very Poor

Stable

12

187

97

52

Poor

Stable

Urban Melbourne

42

750

350

47

Macedon Ranges, Hume,
Mitchell and Whittlesea

11

196

114

58

Poor

Improving

Yarra Ranges & Nillumbik

30

566

321

57

Poor

Improving

Casey, Cardinia & Baw
Baw

25

487

214

44

Poor

Improving

Bass Coast & Islands

4

80

36

45

Poor

Improving

Poor

Stable

Port Phillip & Westernport CMA
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Our Business and Culture
2012/13 highlights: Land protection and enhancement

Partners involved

PPWCMA, Bass Coast, Westernport
Catchment and South Gippsland Landcare
Networks and individual landholders

PPWCMA, Department of Environment and
Primary Industries, Shire of Moorabool,
Melbourne Water, Southern Rural Water,
Parks Victoria, Landcare Groups, VicRoads,
Conservation Volunteers Australia, Landcare
groups

PPWCMA, Western Port Catchment Landcare
Network, Department of Environment and
Primary Industries

Program

Western Port Land
Stewardship project

Grow West

Healthy Soils and Farm
Management Practices

Maintaining a healthy
organisational culture and
high standards of business
management and governance

Outcomes

Educational and on-ground works across Western Port catchment
for improved soil health and reduced risks of sediments and nutrients
entering Western Port. Soil health improvement plans applied to
1,700 ha.

Continuation of a ten-year land rehabilitation project near Bacchus
Marsh. Achievements in 2012/13 were: 58 ha of revegetation, 70 ha
of protection / enhancement, and 6 km of waterways fenced and
revegetated in Whitehorse Creek Biolink; initiating a 12 km biolink
between Werribee Gorge and Brisbane Ranges (296 ha of revegetation
and 52 ha of enhancement and protection); a VicRoads partnership for
extensive woody weed removal and warren destruction (110 ha); and site
preparation for direct-seeding for biolink in Ingliston Park.

Reducing soil risks of soil acidification and increasing carbon content
of soils with 100 farmers on 10,000 ha of farmland through knowledge,
skills and on-ground practices

The PPWCMA strives for best practice business
management; to maintain high standards of
financial management, corporate governance,
risk management, business processes,
organisational culture and reporting. This
encompasses the efficient management of the
business and operations while also ensuring
that the PPWCMA is a rewarding, challenging
and enjoyable place to work. The PPWCMA
is committed to reporting on performance in
an open and transparent manner and offer the
following report of achievements and challenges
during 2012/13.
The Key Performance Indicators in this area
have been achieved in 2012/13 however the
PPWCMA strives for continuing improvement.

Approximately 80% of the Port Phillip and
Western Port region is rural land. It includes
premium-value agricultural areas and high
quality natural bushland, broadacre farming
areas and rural-residential areas.
In the new RCS, The PPWCMA has defined the
extent of Melbourne’s hinterland by mapping
the Farm Zones, Green Wedge Zones, Rural
Conservation Zones, Rural Living Zones and
some specific Special Use Zones outside the
Urban Growth Boundary.
The hinterland area in 2012/13 totals 648, 331
hectares.
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Future reports on catchment condition in the
region will monitor changes to hinterland extent
as an element of the overall condition of natural
resources in the region.
In addition to the monitoring of hinterland
extent, a more detailed analysis of land
condition in the region is also being pursued
by PPWCMA in partnership with Department

of Environment and Primary Industries and
other partners, which will be a trial method to
assess soil health. The project in the Western
Port catchment will inform the RCS and provide
information for future reports on soil health in
the region.
An important influence on the land health in this
region comes from the continuing urbanisation
of the landscape. New housing and associated
infrastructure increase the proportion of the
region containing impervious surfaces and can
reduce the land’s overall capacity to support
natural systems.

The members of the Business and
Remuneration Committee in 2012/13 were:
 Neville Goodwin (Chair);

The Regional Catchment Strategy Steering
Committee met on 6 occasions in 2012/13
and oversaw the direction and progress in
development of the next Regional Catchment
Strategy. The Committee membership included
three Board members in 2012/13, namely Arron
Wood, Jane Jobe and Laura Mumaw.
A Community Grants Assessment Panel met
once in 2012/13 to assess the applications
submitted for the PPWCMA Community Grants
program and develop a recommendation to the
PPWCMA Board. The membership of the panel
included one Board member in 2012/13, Jane
Jobe.

Jane Jobe;

Internal Audit

Governance



Jacquelyn Ross;

The PPWCMA Board is a skill based Board
with a membership of eight plus the Chair and
reported to the Hon. Ryan Smith MP, Minister
for Environment and Climate Change, and the
Hon. Peter Walsh MLA, Minister for Water. The
membership and qualifications of the Board can
be found on page 7.



Bill Jaboor (until April 2013); and



Kay Spierings (from April 2013).

Since its formation, the PPWCMA has engaged
external professionals to undertake the role of
internal audit. Reviews undertaken in recent
years included risk profiling, risk management
framework, compliance with the Statement
of Obligations, business operations, financial
management, fraud minimisation, project
management, statutory compliance and
community engagement. All reviews have
consistently reported that the PPWCMA
maintains a high standard of governance and
risk minimisation. Recommendations from all
reviews were recorded in a register and their
implementation was monitored by the Audit
Committee.

PPWCMA Board Meetings
Six Board meetings were held during 2012/13
and attendance at these meetings is detailed in
the table below.

Refer to page 15 for a map of the project locations.

There are various projects underway by
Government agencies, Councils, Landcare,
Agricultural bodies and others to protect and
enhance land health. Some of the projects are
outlined in the table above.

The Business and Remuneration Committee
met on 3 occasions in 2012/13. The key
items addressed by the Committee included
development of the Chief Executive Officer
(CEO) Work Program, assessment of CEO
performance, development of advice to the
Board regarding CEO remuneration and
oversight of PPWCMA compliance with
government policy.

marketing; sales; general management; and
was the financial director of a significant private
company. He previously served a 3-year term as
Chair of the Audit Committee for the Bass Coast
Shire Council.



Board Member

The condition of land in this region

PPWCMA Board Committees
A number of committees established by the
Board made important contributions to the
governance and compliance of the PPWCMA in
2012/13. These committees each have a Chair,
a Committee Charter approved by the Board,
and report to the Board at each Board Meeting.
The membership and Charter of each committee
is reviewed on a regular basis.

No. of board
meetings
attended

Neville Goodwin (Chair)

6/6

Peter Akers (Deputy Chair
to 28th February 2013)

5/6

Jacquelyn Ross (Deputy
Chair from 28th February
2013)

4/6

Lance Jennison

5/6

Laura Mumaw

6/6

Kay Spierings

5/6

Arron Wood

6/6

Jane Jobe

5/6

Bill Jaboor

3/6

The board undergoes an annual Board
performance review and as part of this process
identifies any professional development
opportunities for Board members to enhance
the overall performance of the Board in its
leadership and governance role.

The Audit Committee met on 5 occasions in
2012/13. The key items addressed included
planning and oversight of internal audit projects,
oversight of implementation of the PPWCMA’s
Annual Financial Statements and review of
PPWCMA compliance with the Financial
Management Compliance Framework and Tax
Compliance Framework.
The independent members of the Audit
Committee in 2012/13 were four PPWCMA
Board members and one external member,
namely:


Kay Spierings (Chair and member to 28th
of February 2013);



Peter Akers (Chair from 28th February
2013);



Laura Mumaw;



Lance Jennison; and



Barry Hughes (from 18th April 2013).

Barry Hughes is a Chartered Accountant,
Registered Company Auditor in public practice,
and a partner in a firm in Wonthaggi. He has
extensive experience in the computer, printing
and personnel recruiting and labour hire
industries in New Zealand, the United Kingdom
and Australia. Barry has had responsibilities
in financial and management accounting;

Risk Management
Processes for the identification, reporting
and monitoring of risks at the PPWCMA are
practical and effective. Risk identification and
management is a standing agenda item on
many PPWCMA meeting agendas including
Board, committees and staff meetings. The
PPWCMA Audit Committee undertakes
an internal review of our risk management
framework on a bi-annual basis and internal
audit reviews are undertaken on a regular basis,
the most recent completed in June 2013.
Results of these reviews are reported to the
Audit Committee prior to submission to the
Board.
The PPWCMA’s current risk profile is low
with the highest rankings associated with
the development of the Regional Catchment
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Strategy website, an innovative model for
the sector. The Board plays an active role in
managing these particular risks and has an
established sub-committee which is directly
involved in the day to day management.
The following Risk Management Attestations are
made on behalf of the PPWCMA:

PPWCMA Risk Management
Compliance Attestation
I, Neville Goodwin, certify that the Port
Phillip and Westernport Catchment
Management Authority has risk
management processes in place
consistent with the Australian/New
Zealand Risk Management Standard AS/
NZS ISO 31000-2009 (or its successor)
and an internal control system is in place
that enables the executive to understand,
manage and satisfactorily control risk
exposures.
The Audit Committee verifies this
assurance and that the risk profile of the
Port Phillip and Westernport Catchment
Management Authority has been critically
reviewed within the last 12 months.

Compliance
Corporate Plan and Annual Report
The PPWCMA Corporate Plan articulates
organisational targets for each year and the key
result areas against which performance can
be measured. The PPWCMA Corporate Plan
for 2013/14 was submitted to the Hon. Ryan
Smith MP, Minister for Environment and Climate
Change, in April 2013. A copy can be found on
the PPWCMA website:
www.ppwcma.vic.gov.au



Providing an environment where
employees feel safe to report all hazards,
incidents and injuries. The framework
encourages a culture where all employees
are actively involved in the management of
reported hazards and incidents.

Key results against the WHS targets are
summarised in the following graphs.
WHS Committee Activities

Financial Management Compliance
Framework
For the fourth year in a row, the PPWCMA’s
Internal Auditors have reported that the
PPWCMA is compliant with all applicable
Financial Management Compliance Framework
Directions.

5
4 Chart 1.

Three Year Reporting History

3
2
1
0
10/11

12/13

11/12

Inspections

Meetings

A Statement of Obligations for the PPWCMA,
issued by the Minister for Environment and
Climate Change, was in place for the 2012/13
year. During 2012/13 the PPWCMA undertook
an internal audit review of compliance with the
Statement of Obligations. No instances of noncompliance were identified.

Compliance with the Catchment and
Land Protection Act 1994
The PPWCMA fully complies with the
Catchment and Land Protection Act 1994.

4

10/11

Workplace Health and Safety

I, David Buntine, certify that the Port
Phillip and Westernport Catchment
Management Authority has complied with
Ministerial Direction 4.5.5.1 – Insurance.

David Buntine
Chief Executive Officer
Port Phillip and Westernport CMA
8th August 2013

The PPWCMA is committed to a Workplace
Health and Safety (WHS) framework that
reduces workplace injuries and improves the
health and well-being of the employees. The
WHS framework includes:



A WHS Committee that meets at least
quarterly, and that conducts regular
workplace inspections;



A comprehensive WHS induction for all
new employees;
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A comprehensive WHS Policy, Committee
Charter, Procedures Manual and Strategy;

Keeping managers and employees up
to date on WHS requirements including
ensuring they receive refresher training at
least once every three years;
Proactive management of the wellbeing
of employees through the Health and
Wellbeing Program; and

Claims

11/12

12/13

Hazards

Incidents

Disclosures to the IBAC can be made in
person, by phone, in writing or via email.
More information is available on IBAC’s
website www.ibac.vic.gov.au
The PPWCMA has developed a Protected
Disclosure Procedure which can be found on
the PPWCMA website:
www.ppwcma.vic.gov.au
The PPWCMA has not been notified of any
protected disclosures during 2012/13.

Freedom of Information

During 2012/13, there were no disclosures
made under the Whistleblower’s Protection Act
2001.

Protected Disclosure Act 2012



Internal working papers;



Correspondence from Ministers and
Members of Parliament, Government
Departments and agencies, members of
the public and the private sector;



Reports prepared by consultants
commissioned by the PPWCMA;



Accounts records;

3

1

Under the Act, the Independent Broad-based
Anti-corruption Commission of Victoria (the
IBAC) has a key role in receiving, assessing
and investigating disclosures about improper
conduct and detrimental action taken in reprisal
for a disclosure by public bodies or public
officers.

The public has the right to apply for access to
documents held by the PPWCMA and covered
by the Freedom of Information Act 1982. This
applies to documents created by the PPWCMA
as well as those supplied to the PPWCMA.
The public may apply for the original or for a
copy. The fee from 1 July 2013 is $25.70. The
fee is reviewed annually. Further charges may
be payable depending on the requirements
to fulfil the request. These fees and charges
are not subject to GST. Documents which are
maintained in the possession of the PPWCMA
include:

The Ombudsman Victoria
Level 9, 459 Collins Street Melbourne VIC 3000
Telephone: 03 9613 6222
Toll free: 1800 806 314

Three Year Reporting History

0

Attestation for compliance with
the Ministerial Standing Direction
4.5.5.1 – Insurance

Jennifer Berensen
Protected Disclosure Coordinator
Department
of Environment and Primary
2012
Industries
PO Box 500 East Melbourne VIC 3002
Telephone: 03 9637 8697
Facsimile: 03 9637 8129
Email: jennifer.berensen@dse.vic.gov.au

Statement of Obligations

2

Neville Goodwin (Chair)
8th August 2013

Applicable until February 9th 2013.
The Whistleblower’s Protection Act 2001
is designed to protect people who disclose
information about serious wrongdoing within
the Victorian Public Sector and to provide a
framework for the investigation of these matters.
The Protected Disclosure Coordinator for
the Department of Environment and Primary
Industries acts as an agent for the PPWCMA to
receive disclosures under the Act and applies
its procedures in managing disclosures under
the Act. Disclosures may also be made directly
to the Ombudsman. The contact details for
the Protected Disclosure Coordinator and
Ombudsman are:

6

The PPWCMA Annual Report for 2011/12
was tabled in Parliament by the Minister for
Environment and Climate Change on 11
October 2012. A copy can be found on the
PPWCMA website: www.ppwcma.vic.gov.au

Whistleblower’s Protection Act 2001

Applicable
From February 10th 2013.
2012
The Protected Disclosure Act 2012 (the Act)
enables people to make disclosures about
improper conduct within the public sector
without fear of reprisal. The Act aims to ensure
openness and accountability by encouraging
people to make disclosures and protecting them
when they do.



Personnel and salary records; and



Organisation and accommodation records.

Freedom of Information (FOI) requests must be
made in writing and should be as specific as
possible to enable the FOI Authorised Officer
to identify relevant documents as quickly and
efficiently as possible. Once a letter requesting
access is received, the PPWCMA must respond
as soon as possible, but not later than 45
days, outlining its decision on the request. If the
PPWCMA refuses access to the documents
sought, the applicant can appeal to the
Authorised Officer for an internal review, but
must do so within 28 days of the letter being
sent to the applicant. The PPWCMA must then
reconsider the request and respond to the
applicant within 14 days. If the applicant wishes
to appeal further to the Victorian Civil and
Administrative Tribunal, they must do so within
60 days of the date they were notified of the
outcome of the internal review. The PPWCMA
has determined that the Authorised Officer for
receiving FOI requests is:
Annie Flynn
Business Services Coordinator PPWCMA
Level 1, 454 – 472 Nepean Hwy
Frankston VIC 3199
Email: enquiries@ppwcma.vic.gov.au
Telephone: 03 8781 7900

There were no FOI requests received during
2012/13.

Consultancies
In 2012/13, the PPWCMA engaged six
consultancies totalling $136,845. Of these, three
were less than $10,000, with a total expenditure
of $6,373 (excl. GST). The three consultancies
valued at over $10,000 are detailed in the
following table.

Employee Satisfaction %
100

Consultant

Purpose of consultancy

Start date

End date

Total approved
project fee
(excluding GST)

Expenditure
2012-13
(excluding GST)

Future
expenditure
(excluding
GST)

The Living Links Master Plan

01/09/12

01/02/13

$55,426

$55,426

-

RM Consulting Group

Habitat Protection and
Conservation Program

13/03/13

17/06/13

$32,955

$32,955

-

RM2012
Consulting Group

Westernport Ramsar
Protection Project

01/01/13

17/06/13

$42,091

$42,091

-

80

60

Urban Initiatives

40

20

0

Reporting
culture

2010/11

Management
Commitment

Organisational
Commitment

2011/12

Actions to
improve WHB

2012/13
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Compliance with the Building Act 1993
The PPWCMA leases all its office spaces and
does not manage any buildings. Therefore
PPWCMA is exempt from notifying its
compliance with the building and maintenance
provisions of the Building Act 1993.

Major Changes or Factors Affecting
Performance
There were no major changes or factors
affecting the PPWCMA performance during the
reporting period.

Our Workforce
Information Privacy
The PPWCMA values and protects the privacy
of all groups and individuals it deals with. The
PPWCMA has a privacy policy in place that
complies with the Victorian Information Privacy
Act 2000. All personal information collected
by the PPWCMA is held securely and any
disclosures are handled in accordance with the
ten Information Privacy Principles.

Victorian Industry Participation Policy
Act 2003
This policy is applied when tenders are let of
greater than $1 million in regional Victoria. The
PPWCMA did not let any tenders of this scale in
2012/13.

National Competition Policy Compliance
Competitive neutrality seeks to enable fair
competition between Government and
private sector business. Any advantages or
disadvantages that government businesses may
experience, simply as a result of government
ownership, should be neutralised. PPWCMA
continues to implement and apply this principle
in its business undertakings.

Industrial Relations
No time was lost in 2012/13 due to industrial
accidents or disputes.

International Travel
There was no international travel undertaken by
PPWCMA Board members or staff acting on
behalf of the PPWCMA during 2012/13.

Community Inclusiveness and Diversity
The PPWCMA is committed to improving the
quality of service delivery to culturally and
linguistically diverse communities and values
community inclusiveness. The PPWCMA’s
approach is consistent with a Victorian
Government Community Inclusiveness Circular
of 2009 relating to culturally and linguistically
diverse backgrounds, women, youth and
indigenous affairs.

Year

Total Staff

Staff turnover

23

3

2012/2013

Availability of Other Information

Workplace Culture

Further information about the operations
of the PPWCMA and information relevant
to Financial Reporting Direction 22B of the
Financial Management Act 1994 is held
at the PPWCMA office and is available
upon request, subject to the provisions of
relevant legislation and policies including
the Privacy Act 2000 and the Freedom of
Information Act 1982.

Work is guided by the PPWCMA’s values of
being Vibrant, Reliable, Respectful, Supportive,
Valued, Focussed, Positive, Articulate and
Balanced.

Information includes:

Staff Category

2012/13

2011/12

Executives

1

1

Managers

4

3

Leaders

3

7

Administration Staff

4

3

Project Staff

11

9

Total

23

23

Employment and Conduct
The PPWCMA is an equal opportunity employer
and applies the Victorian Government’s
merit and equity principles, as described in
the Public Administration Act 2004, to all
employment selection procedures. Selection
processes ensure that applicants are
assessed and evaluated fairly and equitably
on the basis of the position’s Key Selection
Criteria and other accountabilities without
discrimination. PPWCMA staff operate under
a Code of Conduct. The Code is reflected in
the PPWCMA’s Corporate Plan and within
staff work performance plans and encourages
collaboration, professionalism, approachability
and inspiration in all activities.
The gender balance in the PPWCMA Board and
staff as at 30 June 2013 is shown in the table
below.

Staff Category

2012/13

2011/12

Male Board members

5

5

Female Board
members

4

4

Total

9

9

Staff Category

2012/13

2011/12

Male staff members
(Managers and
Leaders)

13(3*)

13(7*)

Female staff
members (Managers
and Leaders)

10(2)

10(4)

23

23

Total



a statement that declarations of
pecuniary interests have been duly
completed by all relevant officers of
PPWCMA;



details of shares held by senior
officers as nominee or held
beneficially in a statutory authority or
subsidiary;



details of any major external
reviews carried out in respect of the
operation of PPWCMA;



details of assessments and
measures undertaken to improve the
occupational health and safety of
employees, not otherwise detailed in
the report of operations;



details of the PPWCMA WHS Policy
and Employee Manual;



details of the PPWCMA’s internal
environmental performance; and



a statement of the extent to which
the PPWCMA Committees’ purposes
have been achieved.

Each year the PPWCMA participate in the
annual People Matter Survey conducted by the
State Services Authority. This survey enables
employees to provide feedback on how they
find the PPWCMA as a place to work, and is
an important measure the PPWCMA uses to
understand and enhance employee culture,
morale and job satisfaction.
In 2012/13, the PPWCMA again achieved
a response rate of 100%, with the results
indicating that, similar to last year, the PPWCMA
is performing above the industry average
with an increase in the already high levels of
employee satisfaction in some areas. Initiatives
that have contributed towards these results
were the introduction of Workplace Obligations
and Business Essentials training, and the
continued focus on the PPWCMA values in all
aspects of work.

The areas that remain a concern for our
employees are those regarding the PPWCMA’s
and the industry’s future, and their own job
security. The PPWCMA will continue to ‘walk the
talk’ regarding its values and its environmental

performance and will focus on these areas in
2013/14.
The percentage of overall employee satisfaction,
with three of the key reporting areas within the
survey, is summarised in the following graph.

Employee Satisfaction %
100
95
90
85
80
75
70

PPWCMA

Industry
Avg.

Values

2010/11

PPWCMA

Industry
Avg.

Principles

2011/12

PPWCMA

Industry
Avg.

Workplace

2012/13

The information is available on
request from:
Carolyn Nicholson
Business and Governance Manager
Telephone: 03 8781 7900
Email: enquiries@ppwcma.vic.gov.au

*includes executive staff
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Environmental Footprint


Remain carbon neutral to scope 1 & 2; and



Reams of copy paper printed to less than
18 reams per FTE.

Actions to be implemented in 2013/14 to
continue improvement of the PPWCMA’s
environmental footprint include:

175,000

8,500



150,000

7,500



Increase the PPWCMA’s Environmental
Working Group’s involvement in monitoring
activities;

In 2012/13 the PPWCMA achieved 4 out of its 5
environmental targets:

Improved understanding by staff of how to
conduct sustainable events;



Provide staff education on how to change
habits to reduce emissions;



Increase in staff awareness of sustainable
purchasing and tender processes;





Increase in staff awareness of reducing
emissions from electrical equipment used
in the workplace; and

Review technology use to ensure
PPWCMA staff reduce reliance on printing;
and



Provide staff with educational activities to
encourage use of on line conferencing and
technology.

Increased awareness of sustainable smart
driving practices.

118,932

100,000

96,184

92,869

75,000

50,000
07/08

08/09

09/10

10/11

11/12

12/13

2008

2009

5,042

4,926

4,500

75,333

4,538

4,473

3,500

2012

07/08
(18.85)

08/09
(21.5)

09/10
(18)

10/11
(16.6)

12/13
(18.8)

11/12
(19.8)

2009

2012

Full time equivalent employees (FTE)

Target: Keep energy use to less than 7,200 Kwh per FTE per year.
Action: Monitored usage on a regular basis and purchased green power.
Comment: The target for energy usage was met again this year, although it was increased from 5,000 to 7,200 Kwh
per FTE to recognise an increase in office space.
Annual Landfill & Recycled Waste per FTE

Some of the challenges this year have been:



6006

5,500

90,762

Challenges



Waste going to landfill less than 30
kilograms per full-time employee (FTE),
maintaining recycling rates of more than
75%;



7,098

6,500

Achieving all targets whilst having
expanded the office space; and
Maintaining low levels of fuel consumption
associated with PPWCMA fleet vehicles.

Target results
The following tables report the PPWCMA “Our Office Our Environment” Action Plan targets and progress, and comments on comparisons from
the base year 2007/08 through to 2012/13.

Recycling Rate %

250

100%
6

200

15

25.5

150

90%

34

100

12

9

22

28

18

18

69

15

50

71

65

66

157

174

08/09

09/10

10/11

11/12

12/13

82%

77%

80%

13
16

85%

81%

28

4.5

per year

Performance



Overall Electricity Usage per FTE

133,459

125,000

Total annual carbon emission per tonne

The ‘Our Office Our Environment’ Action Plan
covers all PPWCMA office activities and aims
to minimise the consumption of electricity, fuel,
paper, waste to landfill and promote sustainable
values.

Total Electricity Usage

Monitor workplace changes and review
environmental targets on a regular basis;

Key highlights of the year were:

PPWCMA’s environmental initiatives and
activities are guided by the PPWCMA’s
Environmental Policy and “Our Office Our
Environment” Action Plan, and the Victorian
Government’s Financial Reporting Directions
(FRD) 24C.



Energy use for electricity less than 7,200
kilowatt per hour (kWh) per FTE;

kilowatts



The PPWCMA is committed to reducing its
environmental footprint and acknowledges the
importance of protecting the environment and
encouraging a sustainable workplace. This year
the PPWCMA is again proud to report on its
environmental performance.

Annual kilowatts

Background

75%
70%
60%
50%

50

40%

2009

0
07/08
Recycled paper

Landfill

Recycled plastic

42%

2012

30%
07/08

08/09

09/10

10/11

11/12

12/13

Compost

Target: Keep landfill waste to less than 30kg/FTE & recycling rates to less than 75%.
Action: Continued the waste to landfill recycling program and provided education on a regular basis.

250

150

100

159

167

154

133

200

221

50

08/09

09/10

10/11

11/12

12/13

2008

2009

153.60

124.50

141.40

102.10

50

185.71

85.45

07/08

08/09

09/10

10/11

11/12

12/13

2012

15
13.2

12

100

2012

15.2

14

0
07/08

36

16
150

2009
0

Fuel Emissions

A4 equivalent copy paper printed

200

Co2t-e fuel emissions per year

Total annual carbon
emission per tonne

200

Reams per FTE

250

Tonnes of CO2 per year

Comment: On track.

Total Greenhouse Reductions & Residual CO2t-e

Total Carbon Emissions

11.7

12.2

10
8

8.4

6
4
2

Greenhouse reductions

Residual emissions offset

34

30

33.42

33.14

32

33.96

31.42

28
27.62

26

26.16

24
22
20

0
07/08

08/09

09/10

10/11

11/12

12/13

2009

2012

07/08

08/09

09/10

10/11

11/12

12/13

2009

2012

Target: Remain Carbon Neutral to scope 1 & 2.
Action: Continued to purchase 100% green power at the Frankston office and purchased offsets for any residual CO2t-e.
Comment: Overall emissions have increased. The % of green power and Renewable Energy Credits available were less than
in previous years; however offsets were purchased to ensure target was achieved

36
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Target: Reduce the use of A4 copy paper to less than 18 reams per FTE.
Action: Monitor data on a regular basis.
Comment: Various paper use reduction mechanisms were used. A new target for
continual improvement will be set.

Target: Keep greenhouse gases associated with travel to less than 33CO2t-e.
Action: Continue to monitor regularly.
Comment: Review target, communicate results to staff to increase awareness
of smarter travel options.
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1Jul
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0

Month
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09/10

Jan
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Apr
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56

Contingent liabilities and
assetts

56

Subsequent events

56

Capital commitments

56
56

10

7
6

5

5

4

6

2010/11

2009/10

2008/09

2,336,235

4,252,328

4,060,312

3,677,413

1,830,900

3,858,260

3,476,000

3,056,000

5,616,841

3,150,000

926,145

1,155,108

746,900

732,286

1,115,271

7,120,640

8,883,436

7,863,212

10,026,540

6,096,171

7,905,240

8,131,948

8,101,279

8,836,577

6,493,209

(784,600)

751,488

(238,067)

1,189,963

(397,038)

(604,248)

796,383

(132,676)

819,122

49,647

4,571,640

3,800,056

3,927,332

3,083,441

5

Net Result for the Reporting Period

4

7,000,000

12/13

3

Net Cash Flow6,000,000
from Operating Activities
Total Assets

2
1

4,000,000

0

3,000,000

-1

Total Liabilities2,000,000

-2

3,920,097
2008/09
676,904

2009/10
543,847

0

4
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Australian Government
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Revenue

6

412,960

2011/12

759,032

2012/13

Expenditure

Expenses

Result

PPWCMA five year financial summary

PPWCMA revenue and expenditure in 2012/13

2

2010/11
523,751

Year

1,000,000

3

0

2011/12

7

8,000,000

11/12

10/11

8

9,000,000

9

6

2012/13

9

Expenditure

10,000,000

Expenses

10

7

$ millions

Remuneration of auditors

11

Revenue

Total Revenue

2

Sources of PPWCMA revenue over five years
55

12

Other Revenue

54

Financial instruments

Lease commitments

Australian Government Contributions

8

0

Responsible persons and
accountable officer disclosure

Victorian Government Contributions

8

1

Superannuation

The 2012/13 Financial Statements reveal that
the PPWCMA received total revenue of over
$7.0 million in 2012/13 with a deficit of
approximately $780,000 at year end. The deficit
reflects the PPWCMA’s focus on project delivery
and the expenditure of 2011/12 Committed
Funds.

Revenue

Pattern
of PPWCMA cumulative expenditure over five years
$ millions

2

53

Five year summary of PPWCMA finances

5,000,000

3

Financing arrangements

2012/13

6

3

$ millions

Reconciliation of net result for
the reporting period to net
cash flows from operating
activities

2011/12

5

2,000,000

11

52

2010/11

7

08/09

Committed funds reserve

2009/10

8

4

0

2008/09

9

3,000,000

1,000,000

49

Apr May June

While operating in a changing funding
environment the PPWCMA has remained
focused on achieving the Key Performance
Indicators and maintaining low operating
costs across the business. Savings have been
achieved across all programs and alternative
funding sources have been investigated.

The PPWCMA manages its finances in line
with the Financial Management Act 1994
and the associated Directions of the Victorian
Government Minister for Finance. The Financial
Statements included in this Annual Report have
been audited and certified by the Victorian
Auditor General’s Office.

Pattern of PPWCMA cumulative revenue over five years
$

Balance sheet

Financial risk management
objectives & policies

Feb Mar

Summary of performance

$ millions

What are the financial
statements

(3) Statement of Changes in Equity; and (4)
Cash Flow Statement. These Statements are
supported by a series of notes which provide
a more detailed explanation of the four main
reports and other information relevant to our
financial performance.

Financial Statements
5,000,000 are designed to provide
an overview of4,000,000
the financial performance of
the PPWCMA.3,000,000
The Statements consist of four
2,000,000
main reports: (1)
Comprehensive Operating
1,000,000
Statement (known previously as a Profit
0
and Loss Statement); (2)
Jul Balance
Aug Sep Sheet;
Oct Nov Dec
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Financial report

Auditors report

Statutory Certification
We certify that the attached financial statements for the Port Phillip and Westernport Catchment
Management Authority have been prepared in accordance with Standing Directions 4.2 of the Financial
Management Act 1994, applicable Financial Reporting Directions, Australian Accounting Standards including
Interpretations and other mandatory professional reporting requirements.
We further state that, in our opinion, the information set out in the Comprehensive Operating Statement,
Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity, Cash Flow Statement and notes to the financial report,
presents fairly the financial transactions during the year ended 30 June 2013 and the financial position of the
Authority as at 30 June 2013.
We are not aware of any circumstance which would render any particulars included in the financial
statements to be misleading or inaccurate.

Mr Neville Goodwin
Board Chair
Port Phillip and Westernport
Catchment Management Authority
(Chairman)

Mr David Buntine
Chief Executive Officer
Port Phillip and Westernport
Catchment Management Authority
(Accountable Officer)

Ms Carolyn Nicholson
Business and Governance Manager
Port Phillip and Westernport
Catchment Management Authority
(Chief Finance & Accounting Officer)

Dated 8th August, 2013
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Comprehensive
Operating Statement
For the Year Ended 30 June 2013
Note

Revenue from Operating Activities

2012/13
$

2011/12
$

3

Victorian Government Contributions

2,336,235

4,252,328

Australian Government Contributions

3,858,260

3,476,000

Other Contributions

655,967

899,125

Interest Revenue

187,333

208,193

7,037,795

8,835,646

82,845

47,790

82,845

47,790

7,120,640

8,883,436

2,349,407

2,400,748

136,845

29,508

Income from Non-Operating Activities
Other Income

Total Income

Expenses
Employee Benefits

1(c) (i)

Consultants
Grant Payments

1(c) (ii)

4,130,731

4,276,732

Supplies and Services

1(c) (iii)

1,279,787

1,417,800

8,470

7,160

Total Expenses

7,905,240

8,131,948

NET RESULT FOR THE YEAR

(784,600)

751,488

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

(784,600)

751,488

Depreciation

6

The above comprehensive operating statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Balance Sheet

Statement of
changes in equity

As at 30 June 2013
Note

2012/13
$

For the Year Ended 30 June 2013

2011/12
$

Note

Committed Funds
Reserve
$

Accumulated
Funds
$

Total
$

ASSETS
Current Assets

Balance at 1 July 2011

Cash and Cash Equivalents

4

3,805,584

4,411,482

Receivables

5

65,768

99,364

9,304

14,533

3,880,656

4,525,379

Prepayments
Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets
Plant and Equipment

Transfer from/to accumulated funds
Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance at 30 June 2012

Balance at 1 July 2012
6

Total Non-Current Assets

39,441

46,261

39,441

46,261

9

Transfer from/to accumulated funds
Total comprehensive income for the year

TOTAL ASSETS

3,920,097

1,685,472

1,590,833

3,276,305

812,880

(812,880)

-

-

751,488

751,488

2,498,352

1,529,441

4,027,793

2,498,352

1,529,441

4,027,793

(523,196)

523,196

-

-

(784,600)

(784,600)

1,975,156

1,268,037

3,243,193

4,571,640
Balance at 30 June 2013

9

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Payables

7

176,012

110,062

Employee Benefits

8

434,725

385,582

610,737

495,644

66,167

48,203

66,167

48,203

676,904

543,847

3,243,193

4,027,793

Accumulated Funds

1,268,037

1,529,441

Committed Funds Reserve

1,975,156

2,498,352

TOTAL EQUITY

3,243,193

4,027,793

18 & 19

-

-

16

-

-

Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Employee Benefits

8

Total Non-Current Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

EQUITY

Commitments
Contingent Liabilities and Assets
The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Cash Flow Statement
For the Year Ended 30 June 2013

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Notes to the Financial Report for the Year Ended 30 June 2013

Note

2012/13
$

2011/12
$

Receipts
Government Contributions

6,194,495

7,728,328

Interest Received

181,035

198,928

Other Receipts

778,705

926,918

Total Receipts

7,154,235

8,854,174

Employees

(2,282,298)

(2,312,340)

Grants

(4,130,732)

(4,276,732)

Suppliers and Other Payments

(894,283)

(1,162,994)

Goods & Services Tax Paid to ATO (on a net basis)

(451,170)

(305,725)

(7,758,483)

(8,057,791)

(604,248)

796,383

-

567,000

Payments for Plant and Equipment

(1,650)

(27,434)

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(1,650)

539,566

(605,898)

1,335,949

4,411,482

3,075,533

3,805,584

4,411,482

Payments

Total Payments

NET CASH PROVIDED BY/(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

10

Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Receipts from Other Cash Assets

Net (Decrease)/Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the Financial Year
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF FINANCIAL YEAR
The above cash flow statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Formation of the Authority
The Port Phillip and Westernport Catchment
Management Authority (“the Authority”)
was established under the Catchment and
Land Protection Act 1994 on 29 October
2002. On that date the Authority acquired
all the designated property, rights, liabilities,
obligations, powers and functions of the
Catchment and Land Protection Board, which
was abolished on the constitution of the
Authority.

These financial statements have been prepared
(ii) Interest
under the historical cost convention, with the
Interest revenue is recognised when earned.
exception of certain classes of property, plant
and equipment, detailed in note 1(f).		
1 (c) Expense
					Expenses are recognised as they are incurred
The annual financial report was authorised for
and reported in the financial year to which they
issue by the Board on 8 August, 2013.
relate.

The principal address is:
(i) Employee Expenses
Port Phillip and Westernport Catchment
These expenses include all costs related to
Management Authority
employment including wages and salaries,
Level 1, Landmark Corporate Centre
superannuation, fringe benefits tax, leave
454-472 Nepean Highway
entitlements, redundancy payments and
Frankston, VIC 3199
Principal Activities
WorkCover premiums.
					
(ii) Accounting policies			 (ii) Grant Payments
The principal activities of the Authority are the
Unless otherwise stated, all accounting policies
preparation of a Regional Catchment Strategy,
Grants payments are recognised as an expense
applied are consistent with those of the prior
coordinating and monitoring the implementation
in the reporting period in which they are paid or
year.					payable.
of the Regional Catchment Strategy, promoting
		
community awareness of natural resource
(iii) Classification between current and nonmanagement and the provision of advice to
(iii) Supplies and services
current 				Supplies and services expenses are recognised
the Victorian Government on matters relating
In the determination of whether an asset or
to catchment and land management and
as an expense in the reporting period in which
liability is current or non-current, consideration
protection.
they are incurred. These include the general
					is given to the time when each asset or liability
day-to-day running costs incurred in normal
is expected to be realised or paid. The asset or
Note 1 – Significant Accounting Policies
operations (excluding consultants that are
liability is classified as current if it is expected to
			
reported separately).
be turned over within the next twelve months,
1(a) Basis of Accounting			
being the Authority’s operational cycle, apart
(i) General 		
1(d) Cash and Cash Equivalent Assets
from employee benefits provision refer to note
This financial report of the Authority is a general
Cash and cash equivalents include cash
1(i).
purpose financial report that consists of a
on hand, deposits held at call with financial
		
Comprehensive Operating Statement, Balance
institutions, other short-term, highly liquid
1(b) Revenue Recognition			
Sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity, Cash
investments with original maturities of three
(i) Government and Other Contributions
Flow Statement and notes accompanying these
months or less that are readily convertible to
Government and other contributions for the
statements. The general purpose financial
known amounts of cash and which are subject
financial year are recognised as revenue on
report has been prepared in accordance with
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
receipt or when the Authority obtains control of
Australian Accounting Standards (AASs),
bank overdrafts. 				
the contribution and meets certain other criteria
other authoritative pronouncements of the
		
as outlined by AASB 1004, whichever is the
Australian Accounting Standards Board and the
1(e) Receivables				
sooner, and disclosed in the comprehensive
requirements of the Financial Management Act
Trade debtors are carried at amounts due. The
operating statement as government and other
1994 and applicable Ministerial Directions. The
collectability of debts is assessed at balance
contributions.
Authority is a not for-profit entity for the purpose
date and specific provision is made for doubtful
of preparing the financial report.
debts. A provision is made for doubtful debts
Contributions are both general purpose (not
based on a review of all outstanding receivables
subject to conditions regarding their use) and
Where appropriate, those AASs paragraphs
at balance date. Bad debts are written off in the
specific purpose (paid for a particular purpose
applicable to not-for-profit entities have been
period in which they are recognised
applied.					and/or have conditions attached regarding
their use). Where such contributions are for
1(f) Recognition and Measurement of Assets
a particular purpose they are reported and
This financial report has been prepared on
Plant & Equipment 		
administered as committed project funds (refer
a going concern and accrual basis whereby
Plant and equipment represent non-current
to Note 9).				
assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses
assets comprising furniture, equipment,
		
are recognised in the reporting period to which
computers and accessories, used by the
they relate, regardless of when cash is received
Authority in its operations. Items with a cost or
or paid, unless otherwise stated.		
				
Port Phillip & Westernport CMA
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Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies continued
value in excess of $1,000 and a useful life of
more than one year are recognised as an asset.
Items with a cost or value less than $1,000 are
expensed in the current period.
(i) Measurement of Non-Current Physical Assets
All non-current physical assets are recognised
initially at cost and subsequently revalued at
fair value less accumulated depreciation and
impairment in accordance with the requirements
of Financial Reporting Direction (FRD)
103D.

Notes to the Financial Report for the Year Ended 30 June 2013

The depreciation rates used for each class of
depreciable assets are:

Class of Plant and
Equipment
Furniture and Equipment
Computers and
Accessories



Present value – component that the
Authority does not expect to settle within
12 months; and



Nominal value – component that the
Authority expects to settle within 12
months.

Depreciation
10%
20%

1(h) Payables			
Liabilities are recognised for amounts payable
(ii) Acquisition				in the future for goods and services received,
whether or not billed to the Authority.
The purchase method of accounting is used
for all acquisitions of assets. Cost is measured
1(i) Employee Benefits
as the fair value of the assets given, liabilities
(i) Wages and salaries, annual leave and sick
incurred or assumed at the date of exchange
leave
plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition.
Liabilities for wages and salaries, accumulated
Assets acquired at no cost or for nominal
days off and annual leave expected to be
consideration by the Authority are recognised at
settled within 12 months of the reporting date
fair value at the date of acquisition.		
are recognised in employee benefit liabilities
				
in respect of employees’ services up to the
(iii) Impairment of Assets		
reporting date and are measured at the
The recoverable amount for most assets
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities
is measured at the higher of depreciated
are settled, at their nominal values. Employee
replacement cost and fair value less costs
benefits which are not expected to be settled
to sell. Recoverable amount for assets held
within 12 months are measured as the present
primarily to generate net cash inflows is
value of the estimated future cash outflows to
measured at the higher of the present value
be made by the Authority, in respect of services
of future cash flows expected to be obtained
rendered by employees up to the reporting
from the asset and fair value less costs to sell.
date. Regardless of the expected timing of
It is deemed that, in the event of the loss of an
settlements, provisions made in respect of
asset, the future economic benefits arising from
employee benefits are classified as a current
the use of the asset will be replaced unless
liability, unless there is an unconditional right to
a specific decision to the contrary has been
made.					defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting date, in which case it
				
would be classified as a non-current liability.
1(g) Depreciation of Non-current Assets
The depreciable amount of all plant and
equipment is depreciated on a straight line
basis over the useful lives of the assets to the
Authority commencing from the time the asset
is held ready for use. Depreciation rates are
reviewed on an annual basis and there was no
change from prior year.

The components of this current LSL liability are
measured at:

(ii) Long Service Leave (LSL)
Current Liability – unconditional LSL
(representing seven or more years of continuous
service) is disclosed as a current liability even
where the Authority does not expect to settle
the liability within 12 months because it does
not have the unconditional right to defer
the settlement of the entitlement should an
employee take leave within 12 months.

Non-Current Liability – conditional LSL
(representing less than seven years of
continuous service) is disclosed as a noncurrent liability. There is an unconditional right
to defer the settlement of the entitlement until
the employee has completed the requisite years
of service. Conditional LSL is required to be
measured at present value.
In calculating present value, consideration is
given to expected future wage and salary levels,
experience of employee departures and periods
of service. Expected future payments are
discounted using market yields at the reporting
date on national government bonds with terms
to maturity and currency that match, as closely
as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.
(iii) Superannuation
Employees of the Authority are entitled to
receive superannuation benefits and the
Authority contributes to both accumulation
(defined contribution) and defined benefit plans.
Superannuation contributions are made to the
employees’ funds based on the relevant rules
of each plan. The defined benefit plan provides
benefits based on years of service and final
average salary.

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies continued
operating statement. For details and amounts
expensed in relation to the major employee
superannuation funds and contributions made
refer to Note 12.
(iv) Employee Benefit On-Costs
Employee benefit on-costs are recognised and
included in employee benefit liabilities and costs
when the employee benefits to which they relate
are recognised as liabilities.
1(j) Commitments
Commitments (both capital and operating) are
disclosed at their nominal value and exclusive of
the goods and services tax (GST) payable.
1(k) Contingent assets and contingent
liabilities
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are
not recognised in the balance sheet, but are
disclosed by way of a note and, if quantifiable,
are measured at nominal value. Contingent
assets and liabilities are presented inclusive of
GST receivable or payable respectively.
1(l) Reserves
Reserves are amounts set aside for specific
project funding, capital, lease and other
commitments and are recognised in the balance
sheet at nominal value.
1(m) Changes in Accounting Policy
The accounting policies are consistent with
those of the previous year, unless stated
otherwise.

The Authority does not recognise any defined
benefit liability in respect of the plan because
the entity has no legal or constructive obligation
to pay future benefits relating to its employees;
its only obligation is to pay superannuation
contributions as they fall due. The Department
of Treasury and Finance discloses the State’s
defined benefit liabilities in its disclosure for
administered items.

1(n) Goods and Services Tax
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised
net of GST, except where the amount of GST
incurred is not recoverable from the Australian
Taxation Office (ATO). In these circumstances,
the GST is recognised as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of
expense.

Superannuation contributions paid or payable
for the reporting period are included as part
of employee expenses in the comprehensive

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of
GST. The net amount of GST recoverable from,
or payable to, the ATO is included as a current
asset or liability in the Balance Sheet.

are disclosed in the Cash Flow Statement on
a gross basis i.e. inclusive of GST. The GST
component of cashflows arising from investing
which is recoverable or payable to the taxation
authority is classified as operating cash flows.
1(o) Comparative amounts
Where necessary the figures of the prior
year have been amended to align with the
presentation adopted in the current year. The
main change relates to the presentation of
the committed funds reserve balance which
has resulted in the accumulated funds and
committed funds reserve balances being
restated in the balance sheet, the statement of
changes in equity and at Note 9.
1(p) Leases
Lease payments under operating leases, where
substantially all the risks and benefits remain
with the lessor and are charged as expenses in
the periods in which they are incurred.
1(q) New Accounting Standards for
Application in Future Periods
The Australian Accounting Standards Board
(AASB) has issued new and amended
Accounting Standards and Interpretations that
have mandatory application dates for the future
which the Authority has decided not to adopt
early as they are not expected to impact on the
Authority.

Note 2 – Financial Risk Management
Objectives and Policies
The Authority’s activities expose it to financial
risks: market, credit and liquidity risks. This
note presents information about the Authority’s
exposure to each of these risks, and the
objectives, policies and processes for measuring
and managing risk.

management program focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the
financial performance of the Authority. The
Authority uses different methods to measure
different types of risk to which it is exposed.
The Business Management Team identifies,
evaluates and manages financial risks in close
co-operation with the Audit Committee. The
Board provides written principles for overall
risk management, as well as policies covering
specific areas such as interest rate risk and
investment of excess liquidity.
2(a) Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market
prices will affect the fair value or future cash
flows of the Authority’s financial instruments.
Market risk comprises of foreign exchange
risk, interest rate risk and other price risk. The
Authority’s exposure to market risk is primarily
through interest rate risk, and is limited to At Call
funds, there is no exposure to foreign exchange
risk and other price risks.
(i) Interest Rate Risk
The Authority’s exposure to market interest rates
relates to funds invested in the money market.
The Authority does not have any borrowings.
The Authority has minimal exposure to interest
rate risk through its holding of cash assets.
The Authority manages its interest rate risk by
maintaining a diversified portfolio.
(ii) Foreign Exchange Risk
The Authority has no exposure to changes to
foreign exchange rates.
(iii) Other Price Risk
The Authority has no exposure in other price
risk.

There is no foreign currency risk as the Authority
does not trade outside of Australia.
The Authority’s Board has the overall
responsibility for the establishment and
oversight of the Authority’s risk management
framework. The Authority’s overall risk

Cash flows arising from operating activities
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Note 2 – Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies – Continued

Note 3 - Revenue From Operating Activities

2(b) Market Risk Sensitivity Analysis
The sensitivity analysis has taken into account past performance, future expectations and economic forecasts. The Authority believes that a movement
of 1% in interest rates is reasonable over the next 12 months.
Interest Rate Risk
-1%

2012/13

Carrying
Amount
$

Results
$

+1%
Equity
$

Results
$

Equity
$

2012/13
$

Victorian Government Contributions
Department of Sustainability and Environment
Department of Primary Industries
Australian Government Contributions
Caring for our Country
Department of Agriculture, Forests & Fisheries
Biodiversity Fund

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables

3,805,584

(11,051)

(11,051)

11,051

11,051

(11,051)

(11,051)

(11,051)

(11,051)

65,768

Financial Liabilities
Payables

176,012

Total Increase/(Decrease)

Other Contributions
Local Governments and Agencies
Corporate Sponsorship
Partner Contributions
Landholder Contributions

Cash at Bank

-1%

2011/12

Carrying
Amount
$

Results
$

+1%
Equity
$

Results
$

4,411,482

Receivables

(25,112)

(25,112)

25,112

Equity
$

408,056
235,319
255,750
899,125
2011/12
$

18,671

500

300

Cash at Call

1,065,698

2,492,511

Short Term Deposits

2,700,000

1,900,000

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents*

3,805,584

4,411,482

110,062

The Short Term Deposits are bearing fixed interest rates between 3.29% and 3.32% (2011/12: 4.11% and 4.92%).
(25,112)

(25,112)

(25,112)

(25,112)

2(c) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Authority as a result of a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument failing to meet its contractual
obligations. Credit risk arises principally from the Authority’s receivables.

GST Receivable

The Authority’s exposure to credit risk is minimal due to the characteristics of each customer. The receivable balance consists primarily of Government
entities and the risk of failure to meet their obligations is minimal. Receivable balances are monitored on an on-going basis to assess the exposure to
bad debts.

Accrued Interest

2(d) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity Risk is the risk that the Authority will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Authority‘s policy is to settle financial
obligations within 30 days and in the event of dispute make payments within 30 days from the date of resolution.
The Authority manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and banking facilities by continuously monitoring forecasts and actual cash flows
and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and financial liabilities.

2012/13
$

2011/12
$

48,937

7,813

Trade Debtors

5,534

76,087

Security Deposit Paid

5,000

6,200

Total Receivables

Plant and Equipment
Less accumulated depreciation
Total Plant and Equipment

Reconciliation of Plant and Equipment

2(e) Fair Value Measurements
Financial instruments comprise of Cash, Receivables and Accounts Payable. These financial instruments have a short-term maturity. Accordingly, it is
considered that carrying amounts reflect fair values.

Opening Balance 1 July 2012
Additions

6,297

9,264

65,768

99,364

2012/13
$

Note 6 - Plant and Equipment

The Authority does not have any interest bearing liabilities.

Port Phillip & Westernport CMA

435,000
23,636
185,000
12,331
655,967

39,386

Note 5 - Receivables

50

2,996,000
255,000
225,000
3,476,000

* $1,975,156 of $3,805,584 cash and cash equivalents held at balance date are committed to specific projects for which funding has been
provided to the Authority. Refer note 9 for details of programs with funds committed at balance date. (2011/12 $2,498,352 of $4,411,482).

91,551

Total Increase/(Decrease)

2,996,000
166,000
696,260
3,858,260

25,112

Financial Liabilities
Payables

4,232,328
20,000
4,252,328

Petty Cash

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents

2,336,235
2,336,235

2012/13
$

Note 4 – Cash and Cash Equivalents
Interest Rate Risk

2011/12
$

Computers &
Accessories
$

2011/12
$

76,970

75,320

(37,529)

(29,059)

39,441

46,261

Furniture &
Equipment
$

Total
$

14,113

32,148

46,261

1,650

-

1,650

Depreciation expense

(4,115)

(4,355)

(8,470)

Closing Balance 30 June 2013

11,648

27,793

39,441

Port Phillip & Westernport CMA
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Note 6 - Reconciliation of Plant and Equipment – Continued

Opening Balance 1 July 2011
Additions
Disposals
Depreciation expense
Closing Balance 30 June 2012

Computers &
Accessories
$

Furniture &
Equipment
$

Note 9 – Committed Funds Reserve – Continued

Total
$

7,555

18,432

25,987

10,123

17,311

27,434

The total committed funds reserve is constituted by:
Funding Categories 2012/13

Opening
Balance
$

Amounts
Received
$

Closing
Balance
$

Committed
Funds
$

Uncommitted
Funds
$

-

-

-

(3,565)

(3,595)

(7,160)

Australian Government Funded Projects

1,314,775

2,336,235

2,341,241

1,309,769

1,004,076

305,693

46,261

Victorian Government Funded Projects

1,744,502

3,858,260

4,521,814

1,080,948

668,180

412,768

953,325

926,145

1,042,198

837,273

302,900

534,373

4,012,602

7,120,640

7,905,253

3,227,990

1,975,156

1,252,834

14,113

32,148

Other Projects

Note 7 - Payables
Trade Creditors

2012/13
$

2011/12
$

134,905

56,484

Accrued Expenses

10,534

15,000

PAYG Withheld

30,573

38,578

Total Payables

176,012

110,062

Note 8 - Employee benefits
Current

2012/13
$

2011/12
$

Annual Leave

187,221

169,125

Long Service Leave – measured at present value

231,056

195,063

16,448

21,394

434,725

385,582

Time in Lieu
Total Current Employee Benefits

Total Funds

Funding Categories 2011/12

Opening
Balance
$

Amounts
Received
$

Annual Leave
Long Service Leave – measured at present value
Total Non-Current Employee Benefits
Total Employee Benefits at Year End

-

20,430

66,167

27,773

66,167
500,892

48,203
433,785

The following assumptions were adopted in measuring the present value of long service leave entitlements:

Amounts
Expensed
$

Closing
Balance
$

Committed
Funds
$

Uncommitted
Funds
$

Australian Government Funded Projects

1,207,097

4,252,328

4,144,650

1,314,775

962,975

351,800

Victorian Government Funded Projects

1,190,129

3,476,000

2,921,627

1,744,502

1,054,635

689,867

863,888

1,155,108

1,065,671

953,325

480,742

472,583

3,261,114

8,883,436

8,131,948

4,012,602

2,498,352

1,514,250

Other Projects
Total Funds

Funds committed to external service providers at 30 June 2013 are anticipated to be expended as follows:

Non-Current

2012/13
$

Within one year

2011/12
$

37,328

782,240

Later than one year but within five years

-

-

Later than five years

-

-

37,328

782,240

Total Committed Funds (External Providers)

Note 10 - Reconciliation of Net Result for the Reporting Period
to Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities
2012/13

2011/12

Weighted average increase in employee costs

4.5000%

4.3125%

Weighted average discount rates

3.7900%

3.0580%

7 years

7 years

Weighted average settlement period

Amounts
Expensed
$

2012/13
$

Net result for the Reporting Period
Depreciation

2011/12
$

(784,600)

751,488

8,470

7,160

33,596

(29,261)

Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Decrease/ (Increase) in Receivables

Note 9 – Committed Funds Reserve

Decrease /(Increase) in Prepayments

The Authority receives funding for specific projects. Such funding is allocated to, and must be expended on those projects as per signed
agreements. The following tables display monies held and committed at the end of the year in respect to projects currently in progress.
2012/13
$

Funds committed to external service providers

52

Increase /(Decrease) in Creditors and Accruals
Increase /(Decrease) in Employee Entitlements
2011/12
$

37,328

782,240

Funds committed to internal resources

1,937,828

1,716,112

Total Funds Committed to projects – refer note 9(i)

1,975,156

2,498,352

Port Phillip & Westernport CMA

Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Operating Activities

5,229

46,901

65,950

(68,312)

67,107

88,407

(604,248)

796,383

Note 11 – Financing Arrangements
The Authority has no overdraft or other financing facilities (2011/12: Nil).
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Note 12 - Superannuation

Note 13 – Responsible Persons and Accountable Officer Disclosure - Continued

The Authority’s contribution details and amounts expensed in relation to the employee superannuation funds are as follows:
2012/13

Remuneration of Board Members
The number of Board Members whose remuneration from the Authority was within the specified bands is as follows:

2011/12

Scheme

Type

Vic Super

Accumulation

9

45,341

9

53,381

Australian Super

Accumulation

9

13,182

9

11,197

Emergency Services & State Super

Rate %

Defined Benefits

$

Rate %

$

10.3

12,516

10.3

12,211

IOOF Portfolio Service

Accumulation

9

9,445

9

9,325

Mercer Super Trust

Accumulation

9

9,383

9

8,956

Vision Super

Accumulation

9

8,572

9

8,640

Care Super

Accumulation

9

8,062

9

7,980

HESTA Super Fund

Accumulation

9

7,091

9

6,992

HOST plus

Accumulation

9

6,879

9

6,820

Telstra Super Pty Ltd

Accumulation

9

6,114

9

3,206

Netwealth Super wrap

Accumulation

9

5,592

9

-

AMP Life Ltd

Accumulation

9

5,580

9

5,017

Others

Accumulation

9

24,899

9

32,625

TOTAL

162,656

166,350

There were no loans from the Superannuation Funds to the Authority during the year.
Outstanding superannuation contributions as at 30 June 2013 are Nil, (2011/12: Nil).

$

2012/13

2011/12

0-9,999

1

3

10,000 - 19,999

7

7

20,000 - 29,999

1

1

$121,263

$110,340

Total remuneration received or due and receivable Board Members from the reporting entity amounted to:
Loans
There were no loans in existence by the Authority to Responsible Persons or related parties at the date of this report.

Note 14 – Financial Instruments
(a) The Authority’s exposure to interest rate risks and the effective interest rates of financial assets and financial liabilities both recognised and
unrecognised at the balance date are as follows:

Responsible Ministers
The Ministers responsible for the Authority during the financial year were:
 Hon. Ryan Smith MP, Minister for Environment and Climate Change (1 July 2012 - 30 June 2013) and


Hon. Peter Walsh MLA, Minister for Water (1 July 2012 - 30 June 2013)

The remuneration for the Ministers is separately disclosed in the accounts of the Department of Premier and Cabinet.
Accountable Officer
The person who held the position of Accountable Officer in the Authority during the financial year was Mr David Buntine (Chief Executive Officer).
Remuneration of Accountable Officer
Remuneration received or receivable by the Accountable Officer in connection with the management of the Authority during the financial year was in the
range:
$180,000 - $189,999				

2012/13
$
Cash Assets

2011/12
$

2012/13
$

2011/12
$

2012/13
$

2,700,000

1,900,000

1,105,084

2,511,182

2011/12
$

Total
2012/13
$

2011/12
$

500

300

16,831

91,551

16,831

91,551

176,012

110,062

176,012

110,062

Receivables

3,805,584 4,411,482

(ii) Financial Liabilities
Payables
Weighted average interest rate

4.01%

4.54%

2.91%

4.00%

The Authority’s exposure to interest rate risk would mainly arise from any financial assets and financial liabilities which are held to maturity and
bear variable interest rates as their values will fluctuate according to changes in market rates.
(b) Ageing analysis of financial assets

(2011/12: $180,000 - $189,999)

Past due date but not impaired
Carrying
Amount
$

Name

Date of Tenure

2013 Receivables:

Neville Goodwin (Chair)

1 July 2011 to 30 September 2013

Peter Akers

1 July 2011 to 30 June 2013

Amounts owed by other
Government agencies

Bill Jaboor

1 July 2009 to 30 June 2013

Lance Jennison

1 July 2009 to 30 June 2013

Jane Jobe

1 July 2009 to 30 June 2013

Laura Mumaw

1 October 2011 to 30 September 2015

Jacquelyn Ross

1 July 2009 to 30 June 2013

Kay Spierings
Arron Wood

Port Phillip & Westernport CMA

Non-Interest Bearing
Risk

(i) Financial Assets

Board Members
The persons who were Board Members at any time during the financial year were:

54

Floating Interest Rate
Risk

Fixed Interest Rate Risk

Note 13 – Responsible Persons and Accountable Officer Disclosure

Not past due date &
not impaired
$

Less than 1 month
$

Impaired
$

1 – 6 months Over 6 months
$
$

5,534

3,218

-

2,317

-

-

Other receivables

11,297

11,297

-

-

-

-

Total

16,831

14,514

-

2,317

-

-

Amounts owed by other
Government agencies

76,087

76,087

-

-

-

-

11 July 2011 to 30 September 2015

Other receivables

15,464

15,464

-

-

-

-

11 July 2011 to 30 September 2015

Total

91,551

91,551

-

-

-

-

2012 Receivables:

Port Phillip & Westernport CMA
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Disclosure Index
Notes to the Financial Report for the Year Ended 30 June 2013

The annual report of the PPWCMA is prepared in accordance with all relevant Victorian legislations and pronouncements. This index has been prepared
to facilitate identification of the Department’s compliance with statutory disclosure requirements.

Note 14 – Financial Instruments- Continued

Legislation

(c) Maturity analysis of financial liabilities

Nominal Amount
$

Less than 1
month
$

1–6
months
$

Report of operations – FRD Guidance

Over 6
months
$

Charter and Purpose

2013 Payables:
Amounts owed to other Government agencies

14,555

14,555

14,555

-

-

Other payables

161,457

161,457

161,457

-

-

Total

176,012

176,012

172,012

-

-

9,174

9,174

9,174

-

-

Other payables

100,888

100,888

100,888

-

-

Total

110,062

110,062

110,062

-

-

Manner of establishment and the relevant Ministers

4

FRD 22D

Objectives, functions, powers and duties

4

FRD 22D

Nature and range of services provided

4, 6, 8, 9

Management and Structure
Organisational structure

9

Financial and Other Information
FRD 10

Disclosure index

57-58

FRD 22D, SD 4.2(k)

Operational and budgetary objectives and performance against objectives

10-11

FRD 22D

Employment and conduct principles

34

FRD 22D

Occupational health and safety policy

32

FRD 22D

Summary of the financial results for the year

FRD 22D

Significant changes in financial position during the year

39

FRD 22D

Major changes or factors affecting performance

34

FRD 22D

Subsequent events

56

Note 16 - Contingent Liabilities and Assets

FRD 22D

Application and operation of Freedom of Information Act 1982

33

As at 30 June 2013 the Authority had no contingent liabilities and contingent assets (2011/12: Nil).

FRD 22D

Compliance with building and maintenance provisions of Building Act 1993

34

FRD 22D

Statement on National Competition Policy

34

The Authority is not aware of any events that have occurred since balance date, which would, in the absence of disclosure, cause the financial
statements to become misleading (2011/12: Nil).

FRD 22D

Application and operation of the Whistleblowers Protection Act 2001

33

FRD 22D

Details of consultancies over/under $100,000

33

Note 18 - Capital Commitments

FRD 22D

Statement of availability of other information

34

As at 30 June 2013, the Authority had no outstanding capital commitments (30 June 2012: Nil).

FRD 22D

Additional information available on request

34

Note 19 - Lease Commitments

FRD 22D

Diversity reporting / community inclusiveness

34

Operating leases relate to office facilities, vehicles, and office equipment with lease terms between one and five years, with an option to extend. All
operating lease contracts contain market review clauses in the event that the Authority exercises its option to renew. The Authority does not have an
option to purchase the leased assets at the expiry of the lease period.

FRD 22D

Names of board members

7

FRD 24C

Reporting of office‑based environmental impacts

36-37

FRD 25

Victorian Industry Participation Policy disclosures

34

At 30 June 2013 the Authority had the following lease commitments

FRD 29

Workforce Data disclosures

34

FRD 30A

Design and printing requirements

SD 4.5.5

Risk management compliance attestation

32

SD 4.5.5.1

Ministerial Standing Direction 4.5.5.1 compliance attestation

32

SD 4.2(j)

Sign‑off requirements

40

Note 15 - Remuneration of Auditors
2012/13
$
Amounts paid or payable to the Victorian Auditor General’s Office for the audit of the Authority’s financial statements.

2011/12
$

7,100

6,900

Note 17 - Subsequent Events

2012/13
$

56

FRD 22D

FRD 22D

2012 Payables:
Amounts owed to other Government agencies

Page

Ministerial Directions

Maturity Dates
Carrying
Amount
$

Requirement

2011/12
$

Within one year

329,093

310,353

Later than one year but not later than five years

414,807

670,251

Total Lease Commitments

743,900

980,664

Port Phillip & Westernport CMA

38-39

Inside front cover

Port Phillip & Westernport CMA
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Acronyms
Legislation

Requirement

Page

Acronym

Meaning

Financial Report

AG

Australian Government

Financial statements required under Part 7 of the FMA

CEO

Chief Executive Officer

SD4.2(a)

Statement of changes in equity

45

DEPI

Department of Environment & Primary Industries

SD4.2(b)

Operating statement

43

EPA

Environment Protection Authority

SD4.2(b)

Balance sheet

44

FOI

Freedom of Information

SD4.2(b)

Cash flow statement

46

FTE

Full-time Employee

HPAC

Habitat Protection and Conservation Program

IBAC

Independent Broad-based Anti-corruption Commission of Victoria

KPI

Key performance indicator

Other Requirements under Standing Directions 4.2
SD4.2(c)

Compliance with Australian accounting standards and other authoritative pronouncements

39, 47-56

kWh

Kilowatt per hour

SD4.2(c)

Compliance with Ministerial Directions

47

MW

Melbourne Water

SD4.2(c)

Accountable officer’s declaration

54

NRM

Natural Resource Management

OH&S

Occupational Health & Safety

PPWCMA

Port Phillip and Westernport CMA

Other Disclosures as Required by FRDs in Notes to the Financial Statements
FRD 21B

Responsible person and executive officer disclosures

54

PV

Parks Victoria

FRD 103D

Non current physical assets

48

RCS

Regional Catchment Strategy

FRD 106

Impairment of assets

48

SEPP

State Environment Protection Policy

FRD 110

Cash flow statements

46

VCMC

Victorian Catchment Management Council

FRD 112C

Defined benefit superannuation obligations

48

WHS

Workplace Health and Safety

FRD 114A

Financial Instruments – General Government Entities and public non financial corporations

55-56

FRD 114A

Financial Instruments – General Government Entities and public non financial corporations

55-56

Legislation

Page

Legislation

58

Freedom of Information Act 1982

33

Building Act 1993

34

Whistleblowers Protection Act 2001

33

Victorian Industry Participation Policy Act 2003

34

Financial Management Act 1994

39

Catchment and Land Protection Act 1994

32

Protected Disclosure Act 2012

33

Port Phillip & Westernport CMA

Port Phillip & Westernport CMA

59

Index
Acronyms

59

PPWCMA Five Year Financial Summary

Audit Committee

31

PPWCMA Revenue and Expenditure in 2012/13 39

Balance Sheet			

44

Sources of PPWCMA Revenue over Five Years

Board				

7

Business and Remuneration Committee

31

Board meetings

Cash Flow Statement

46

Internal Audit				 31

Catchment Condition

25-30

Committees

Chair’s message

6

Government Funding

13-14

Chief Executive Officer’s Message

8

Grow West

19

Community Grants

22-23

Habitat Protection and Conservation Project

18

31

Highlights

5

Community Outreach Events

21

Landcare Support				 22-23

Compliance

32

Living Links

17

Availability of Other Information

34

Meeting of Minds to Manage the Maribyrnong

20

Community Inclusiveness and Diversity

34

Ramsar Protection Program

20

Compliance with the Building Act 1993		

34

Regional Catchment Strategy

12

Compliance with the Catchment and Land Protection Act 1994

32

Consultancies

33

Employment and Conduct

34

Compliance attestation

32

Environmental Footprint

36-37

Insurance

32

Freedom of Information			

33

Staff

9

Industrial relations

34

Statement of Changes in Equity

45

Information Privacy

34

Summary of Performance

10-11

International Travel

34

Values

4

Major Changes or Factors Affecting Performance

34

Vision

4

National Competition Policy Compliance

34

Yarra4Life

18

Our Workforce

34

Protected Disclosure Act 2012			

33

Statement of Obligations			

32

Victorian Industry Participation Policy Act 2003

34

Whistleblower’s Protection Act 2001		

33

Workplace Health & Safety			

32

Assessment Panel
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38
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